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PROPOSAL OVERVIEW & ENROLLMENT PROJECTION 

Please provide information for the designated representative for the applicant group. This 
individual will serve as the contact for all communications, interviews, and notices regarding the 
submitted proposal. Note: Names and contact information may be shared with external groups by 
GSCA. 

Name of proposed charter school: 
Proposed charter school location: 
*Please indicate the city/town and, if known,
potential address or neighborhood of location.
Virtual operators should indicate the geographies
the operator intends to serve.

School district(s) of proposed school 
location: 

Legal name of group applying for 
charter: 

Names, roles, and current employment 
for all persons on applicant team: 

Designated applicant representative: 

Address: 

Office and cell phone: 

Email address: 

Fax: 

Model or focus of proposed school: 
(e.g., arts, college prep, dual language, etc.) 

Mays Community Academy

929 South St, Mays, IN 46155

Rush County Schools

Northern Rush County Schools

Nansi Custer, President - EMS

Deanna Disney, Vice President - Sales Exec

Shannon Dawson, Secretary - Communications Mgr.

Marcia Schwering, Treasurer - Retired Admin Assistant

Jason Dwenger, Member - Self Employed, Business Owner

Nansi Custer

(765) 969-2215

nansicuster@mays.k12.in.us

Place-Based

1698 E 800 N, Rushville, Indiana 46173



X

x

Proposed Grade Levels and Student Enrollment 

Specify the planned year of opening for the charter school, and indicate both the planned and 
maximum number of enrolled students by grade level for each year. 
Academic Year Grade Levels Student Enrollment (Planned/Maximum) 

K-6 128/140 

             K-6                                      136/142 

             K-6                                      140/150 
             K-6                                      142/150 

             K-6                                      142/150 

Year 1 2024-2025 
Year 2 2025-2026 
Year 3 2026-2027 
Year 4 2027-2028 
Year 5 2028-2029 

Does the school expect to contract or partner with an Education Service Provider (ESP) or 
other organization for school management/operation?* Yes No 
If yes, identify the ESP or other partner organization: 
*Note: If the applicant intends to partner with a service provider or partner that has NO previous experience in operating a
school, the applicant should use the RFP for New Operators.

Proposed Head of School/Principal Information (If Known) 

Name of proposed candidate: Lauren Yoke 

Current employment: Principal, Mays Community Academy 

Daytime phone: (765) 645-5577

Cell phone: (765) 57-6379

Email address         laurenyoke@mays.k12.in.us 

Will a proposal for the same charter school be submitted to another authorizer in the near 
future? Yes No 

If yes, identify the authorizer(s): 

Planned submission date(s): 

Please list the number of previous submissions for request to authorize this charter school 
over the past five years, as required under IC § 20-24-3-4. Include the following information: 

Authorizer(s):       Indiana Charter School Board 

Submission date(s): May, 2023 
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Execu&ve Summary 

Mission 

The Mays Community Academy instills in its students the passion and curiosity necessary for 
lifelong learning. Students at Mays develop the ability to think critically, communicate effectively and 
excel academically. Through an integrated, place-based curriculum, utilizing integrated, academic, and 
social curriculum, and immersion in the world around them, the students become stewards of their 
environment and help make their community a better place. 

Vision 

The Mays Community Academy develops a high quality placed-based rural school that may be replicated 
in other communities. We create, and enhance permanent organizations of rural people to participate in 
state and local policy development to ensure effective rural education. 

Governance and Leadership 

The governing board of MCA, also known as the school board, oversees the management of the school 
and ensures financial compliance with fiscal policy. They are responsible for adopting policies and 
carrying out the mission and goals of the school through strategic planning. The principal, who reports to 
the board monthly, is responsible for overall instructional leadership, including student discipline, as well 
as planning, implementing, and supervising the educational program. The principal has authority over 
personnel matters, including evaluation, hiring, and termination, subject to board approval. The board 
approves all contractual relations with employees and vendors, including educational services, 
transportation, and therapy service providers. The principal, staff, and board work together to establish 
and maintain positive community relations. 

Education Plan/School Design 

After a study of innovative educational models, discussion with educational leaders, and visits to schools 
including the nationally acclaimed Rural Community Academy, the founding group settled on a place-
based model. By incorporating local history, people, places and things (rural placed-based initiative) to 
teach the Indiana State Standards, MCA has turned an ominous situation into a celebration of school and 
community. 

The following is an excerpt from The Journal of Inquiry & Action in Education, 4(3), 2012 - 
"Incorporating Rural and Farm Novels in the Secondary School Classroom: Where We Come From Is 
Who We Are", written by Jesse Moon Longhurst of New Mexico State University. 

Although it is most relevant to secondary education the board finds this excerpt to be an interesting 
perspective on rural communities. 

"Our education system seems to tacitly assume that all students are either urban or suburban, 
and that "rural people lack literate skills and value literacy and education less than their urban 
and suburban counterparts do" (Donehower, 2007, p.38). Rural students are left with the 
impression that the real world happens elsewhere. They are encouraged to leave their homes 
to "make it" and those who stay struggle against a prevailing sense that they have 
somehow failed by staying close to home (Corbett, 2007; Howley, C.B., 2006; Howley, C.W., 
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2009). David Pichaske (1991) wrote that "there are, then, two great themes in rural writing: 
the theme of departure and the theme of return" (p.xxii) and those themes resonate with 
today's rural students just as they did with those of the first half of the twentieth century. It is, 
then, important to encourage the inclusion of specifically rural stories in secondary school 
classrooms. In part, I hope to reassure rural students that the "real world" is rural as well and 
that "real authors" come from even the most out-of-the-way places. I certainly do not believe, 
however, that these rural stories are only beneficial for rural students. Urban and suburban 
students also need to see rural places reflected in their schooling (Ayalon, 2003). We have a 
shared rural heritage in the United States and failing to tell the stories of rural places to all 
students further marginalize rural people and contributes to an essentialized and 
romanticized vision of rural life. Garret Keizer, in his memoir of teaching in a rural Vermont 
community, wrote, "Despite some fond illusions about 'life on the land,' despite the bucolic 
settings of our soft-drink commercials, the American mainstream is pitifully ignorant of and 
indifferent to its rural population" (1988, p.5). Just as we now know of the importance of 
including the stories of many cultures and traditions in our Language Arts classrooms, we 
must make the same case for our country's rural stories as well." 

The board, staff and administration believe wholeheartedly in the importance of maintaining rural 
communities. If rural schools, such as Mays, can be maintained and restructured then there is hope for the 
revitalization of the whole community. If students are taught to appreciate and give back to their 
communities, then they are more likely to stay or return after furthering their education.  

School Performance 

Based on accountability determinations from the 2018-2019 school year, MCA is rated an A 
school with a federal accountability of “Approaching Expectations.”  

The school’s “A rating” is based on 2018-2019 data, our fourth year of operation. Though no 
school grade was assigned since this time, MCA, like most other schools, did experience a drop 
in proficiency during 2019-2020 and 2020-2021. The 2022 data shows proficiency lower than 
our high expectations, but growth scores are improving.  
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ELA Proficiency and Growth 2022 

Math Proficiency and Growth 2022 

Other Accomplishments and Key Projects 

• MCA is a proud partner in the Paramount Health Data Project.
https://healthdataproject.org/
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• MCA achieved the highest status, Level 1, in the Results Driven Accountability (RDA) 
analysis. 
 

i  
 
 

New Data 
 
The Indiana GPS data was released a few days prior to this applica7on. This data can be 
reviewed from this link: h>ps://indianagps.doe.in.gov/Summary/Corpora7on/5283 
 
 
Reason for Submission of Change in Authorizer 
 
The board submits this application believing Grace College will embrace the small rural school 
model. 
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Section I: School Overview 

School Governance 

Nansi Custer President In this role since July 2015 
• Owner and operator of Custer Farms
• Raleigh Fire Department, Assistant Chief/Chief of Medical/Firefighter/EMT/Haz

Mat/Rescue including chief of Medical, Indiana Dept. of Homeland
Security/Certifications or Licensure in firefighter safety and ground operations
training, equipment inspection, community education

• Former Director of Rush County Emergency Management Agency

Deanna Disney Vice-President Has served since July 2015 
• Director of Inside Sales, Watch Communications
• B.S. Mass Communications, University of Evansville

Marcia Schwering Treasurer Has served since 2019 
• Retired, Administrative Assistant, Beacon Credit Union (2006-2023
• B.S. Restaurant and Hotel Management, Purdue University

Shannon Dawson Secretary Has served since 2017 
• Freelance multimedia producer/writer for WFYI Public Media
• Independent documentary producer
• Director of Communications/Donor Engagement for Herron Classical Schools
• B.S Broadcast Journalism, Butler University

Jason Dwenger Member Joined in 2023 
• Business Owner, The Sampler Inc.
• Skilled in building, construction and maintenance
• Associate degree, Construction Technology, Vincennes University

See: 

Attachment 1:  Board Resumes 
Attachment 2:  Economic Interest and Conflict of Interest Form (Exhibit C) 
Attachment 3:  Board Minutes (3 previous) 
Attachment 4:  Governance Documents 

In order to serve on the Board, individuals must possess a strong commitment to the mission, the 
necessary skills to achieve the mission, and a willingness to dedicate the time required for success. At 
MCA, the Board is comprised of individuals with diverse talents, skills, and interests which will 
collectively contribute to the achievement of the school's mission. According to the Northern Rush 
County School Corporation By-Laws, the Board must consist of at least five and no more than seven 
members. The Advisory Board has no set limit on the number of members. Currently, the MCA Board 
has five regular members. 
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As the main entity of accountability for MCA's governance in fiscal oversight, and strategic planning, 
among many other responsibilities, is the board's active and effective oversight. Effective oversight and 
active board members go hand-in-hand, which has a direct impact on the ultimate success of the 
school. 

MCA fully recognizes the Board's role as the steward 
and has carefully and intentionally assembled an 
enriched diverse board that consists of dedicated 
contributors in all the key components necessary to 
carry out its mission and vision for the school into the 
community. The board composition is fully 
representational and inclusive expertise, experience, 
diversity, and talent with management and oversight 
delegated to members based on experience and 
expertise to support decision-making processes that 
ensures effectiveness.  

One of the most important tasks of the board is to 
actively participate on an ongoing basis and take 
responsibility for the success of the school. This 
involves being involved in decision-making, serving on 
committees, attending board meetings, contributing to policy and process development, and being 
committed to the overall direction and implementation of the school's mission. Essentially, attendance and 
active participation are measures of a board member's dedication to their role. 

To ensure effective oversight, the board will use both qualitative and quantitative data, as well as other 
information, to assess the progress of the school. By implementing advanced planning initiatives, the 
board will have the necessary information to prepare in advance, provide ongoing support for continuous 
improvement, and make sound management and oversight decisions. 

At MCA, the board's effectiveness will be regularly evaluated through assessments of their participation, 
support, policy development, financial management, and dedication to the school's mission and vision. 
The board president is responsible for setting the agenda and distributing necessary information and 
materials to both board members and guests prior to meetings. Monthly meetings will be held to discuss 
upcoming issues, receive committee and school reports, and address unfinished business from previous 
meetings. Additionally, there will be focused working meetings dedicated to a single topic such as budget 
development, strategic planning, or policy. 

At MCA, we follow the Public Meetings (Open Door) Law and Indiana Open Door Law, as outlined in 
IC 5-14-1.5 and IC 20-24-4-l(a) respectively. All Board meetings are open to the public, except for 
executive sessions. We hold regular public meetings on a monthly basis and provide a minimum of 48 
hours' notice to the public before each meeting in compliance with the Indiana Open Door Law. Our 
meeting agendas include an open forum item for public input, and we provide the opportunity to record in 
compliance with the law. We make our board policies available online and also provide printed copies at 
the school. Board voting is public, not by secret ballot. Each board member receives a handbook on Open 
Door Law to ensure compliance with regulations. Additionally, our board attorney conducts an annual 
workshop to review and update regulations. We welcome public attendance at our meetings and strive to 
maintain full transparency. 

The MCA Governing Board operates as a collective entity, rather than as individuals. To clearly 
communicate their philosophy of service, the board has adopted a Code of Ethics and Conflict of Interest 
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Policy. The board is committed to avoiding any actual, perceived, or potential conflicts of interest while 
carrying out their duties. Board members have a duty to report any personal ownership, interests, or 
relationships that may affect their ability to make impartial, ethical, and business-based decisions. The 
MCA requires all board members to comply with applicable laws and regulations, conduct themselves 
with honesty and integrity, follow the MCA Code of Ethics, and avoid conflicts of interest. The Conflict-
of-Interest Disclosure Statement outlines general principles that apply to all MCA Board Members. 

School Management 

The Governing Board has assigned most of the operational responsibilities to the principal, who will 
receive educational services from the administrative mentor provided by Indiana Charters. The principal 
will report directly to the Governing Board, supervise the school staff, and lead the day-to-day delivery of 
the educational program and school operations. Additionally, the principal will implement the board's 
policy directives and budgetary decisions. The principal will also recommend personnel and policy issues, 
supervise and train teachers, and direct the program of instruction. 

Together with resources provided by Indiana Charters, the principal will develop a school-wide 
continuous improvement system for the educational program and ensure that all students meet or exceed 
the expected school-wide learning results. 

Indiana Charters is a vendor offering services at the request and under scrutiny of the board of directors. 
Though the services are essential, Indiana Charters is not involved in the decision-making processes. The 
relationship is flexible, and both parties can terminate the contract if necessary. 

In many smaller schools, the office infrastructure may not have the necessary depth to run the school 
effectively. Indiana Charters provides experience and expertise to support MCA. This includes 
administrative mentoring in both school administration and special education matters, data reporting, SIS 
management, grant writing, and financial accounting and support. By doing so, the principal and school 
administrators can focus on interacting with students, parents, and staff, which ultimately benefits the 
school. 

Attachment 5: Resume of School Leader 

Education Plan 

A Brief History 

Prior to the 2015-2016 school year, Mays Elementary was part of Rush County Schools and was located in 
Mays, Indiana - a small town with a population of 180, located approximately nine miles north of Rushville. 
The building was once known as Center Township Grade and High School and is now recognized as a historic 
site on the National Registry of Historic Places, as designated by the United States Department of Interior, 
Parks and Recreation. 

On March 10th, 2015, the school board of Rush County Schools made the decision to close Mays Elementary, 
which is a common occurrence in small rural farming communities. However, the community rallied together 
and formed the Northern Rush County School Corporation, a 501 (c) 3 organization, to provide a unique and 
innovative educational option for families in the area. The school was renamed Mays Community Academy 
(MCA) and has received overwhelming support from the community. 
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Educational Philosophy 

At Mays Community Academy, we aim to instill a lifelong passion for learning in our students. We 
prioritize critical thinking, effective communication, and academic excellence. Our integrated curriculum 
includes academic and social subjects, as well as immersion in the environment around us. This helps our 
students become responsible members of the community and make a positive impact on their 
surroundings. 

We prioritize experiential learning opportunities, including field trips, community service projects, and 
hands-on activities, to help our students understand academic concepts and their real-world applications. 
This approach fosters critical thinking, problem-solving, creativity, and innovation. 

We value the whole child and see each student as a unique individual with infinite potential to learn. We 
maintain high expectations for all students and encourage them to exceed society's standards. Whether 
pursuing college, a career, or a trade, our students will be prepared for success in their education and 
beyond. Our staff strives to create a culturally inclusive environment where everyone is equal and 
welcomed. We aim to maximize engagement and curiosity throughout our students' years at MCA. 

Our rigorous instruction time is five or more hours per day. 

Learning Environment:  

At our school, we believe in fostering a safe, inclusive, and positive environment for our students, staff, 
and families. Our students are encouraged to express themselves freely and think creatively to promote 
independent thinking and individuality. We emphasize the importance of embracing one's unique 
strengths and qualities, being authentic, and questioning conventional wisdom. This approach helps 
cultivate a culture of innovation, diversity, and tolerance, enabling our students to thrive in a rapidly 
changing world and make significant contributions to society. 

Our model of education centers around students and hands-on experiences, with differentiated instruction 
being a crucial aspect. Teachers act as facilitators of learning, creating an environment where students 
take ownership of their education, ask questions, and participate actively in the learning process. 
Collaboration is encouraged through problem-based curriculum and service-learning opportunities. Each 
classroom has a unique and flexible learning environment that caters to the needs of every student. Our 
teachers bring standards to life through play and design, and students go on field trips to explore our 
communities and cities. We empower our students to learn in their own way, providing them with 
different techniques and skills that make sense to them. 

We employ the PBIS (positive behavioral interventions and supports) framework as our school-wide 
approach to managing behaviors. We teach and reinforce positive behaviors to create a positive school 
climate.  

• Hands-on education within the classroom and outside the classroom
• Flexible learning environments - with flexible seating arrangements
• Teachable moments - through the interests of our students and the environment around us
• Caring and loving teachers who understand students’ individual needs
• Safe and fun learning environment with the school resource officer

10



Class Size and Structure: 

At Northern Rush County Schools, we make it our goal to offer small class sizes, with 18-25 students per 
class. For the K-2 grade levels, we maintain a smaller class size of 18-20 students. Our leadership team 
believes that small class sizes help foster close relationships between teachers and students. With fewer 
students, teachers are able to identify each student's strengths and weaknesses more easily. 

Curricula: 

Our school follows the Indiana State Academic Standards for every grade level. We focus on aligning the 
curriculum across different grades to ensure that students have foundational knowledge and skills that 
allow them to succeed not only in higher education but also in life beyond school. By following state 
standards, we aim to provide a consistent and cohesive approach to education that guarantees a quality 
education for all our students. In line with our belief in a well-rounded education, we offer multiple field 
experiences throughout the year for each grade level. These experiences are carefully designed to expose 
students to diverse academic and life experiences, enabling them to learn about different cultures, 
environments, and industries firsthand. By taking learning outside of the classroom, students gain a 
deeper understanding of the world around them and develop critical thinking, problem-solving, and 
collaboration skills that will serve them well throughout their lives. 

Language Arts/Reading 

At our school, we strongly believe that a thorough reading curriculum based on scientific evidence is 
crucial in establishing a solid foundation for students’ future success. We utilize proven reading 
techniques to ensure that students attain the foundational literacy skills necessary for reading fluently, 
comprehending deeply, and communicating effectively. These abilities are essential for success in every 
subject. To prepare students for the high standards required of them, we encourage them to employ 
higher-order cognitive skills, such as critical thinking, complex problem-solving, and innovation. By 
teaching students to think creatively and analytically, we are equipping them with the skills they need to 
succeed in a world that values adaptability, flexibility, and innovation. Our reading instruction 
emphasizes phonics, phonological awareness, phonemic awareness, spelling, fluency, comprehension, 
vocabulary, and writing.  

Our curriculum is based on standard learning, which is taught through hands-on instruction and teachable 
moments, guided by curriculum maps in content area instruction that are tailored to meet the needs of 
each student. We do not limit ourselves to material from an adopted textbook series; instead, we 
supplement our curriculum with a variety of material, including online programs. Classroom teachers also 
incorporate children’s literature and trade books that are appropriate for each grade level. 
Mathematics 

Our school thrives on making math rigorous, innovative, flexible, and adaptive to our students. It is 
important that math be introduced in many different scenarios to make it feasible for our students to 
comprehend. Math manipulatives create an understanding of mathematical concepts that may be 
unfamiliar. Northern Rush County Schools receives numerous manipulatives to provide to the students 
during math instruction time. Math instruction consists of whole group learning based on the Indiana 
Academic Standards, small group time focusing on certain skills and concepts for better understanding, 
and independent practice. The focus on mathematics is a wide range of number sense, problem solving, 
computation and algebraic thinking, geometry, measurement, and data analysis. We believe that if the 
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primary grades develop the foundations of computation and number sense, these can lead them to further 
understanding more complex thought processes. 

Tools: 

We aim to equip our students with the necessary skills to thrive in a digital world by integrating 
technology and digital tools into the learning process. To achieve this, we provide each student with a 
personal Chromebook through our 1:1 device program. This initiative ensures that our students have 
access to a wide range of educational resources and online learning opportunities. Our teachers leverage 
this technology to tailor their teaching methods to the needs of individual students, providing support to 
those who need it and challenging more advanced learners. 

We utilize a variety of tools to enhance the learning experience, including fidgets, flexible seating, 
Centerstone aids to support social and emotional needs, and social-emotional lessons developed by our 
teachers to instill good characteristics in our students. We also incorporate brain breaks and monitor 
technology use to ensure a productive and safe learning environment. 

Methods: 

At our school, we prioritize incorporating activities that address the whole child. One approach we use is 
project-based learning, which encourages students to work together, think critically, and tackle real-world 
problems. Another method is experiential learning, where students engage with their environment through 
field trips, simulations, and hands-on activities. This helps them connect what they learn to the world 
around them. We also integrate the arts into the curriculum, including activities like music, dance, drama, 
and visual arts. These allow students to express themselves and learn holistically by engaging with their 
senses and emotions. 

In the classroom, we use different methods such as small groups, guided reading, and independent 
learning centers. One way we teach through small groups and independent centers is differentiated 
instruction. This involves grouping students based on their skill level and providing them with tasks or 
activities that suit their learning needs. They can collaborate with each other to solve problems and 
complete tasks. 

At independent learning centers, students have the opportunity to work on self-directed tasks and 
activities that help them develop essential skills such as time management, self-evaluation, and self-
motivation. These centers can be tailored to different subjects, providing students with diverse learning 
experiences while still holding them accountable for their progress. Leveraging technology in small 
groups and independent centers can also be highly effective, allowing students to work at their own pace 
and engage with a range of interactive and multimedia materials. Furthermore, teachers can use data from 
these activities to personalize their teaching and better address the unique needs of each student. 

At our school, we offer various teaching methods to cater to different learning styles. We believe that this 
is vital in addressing the diverse needs of our students. Students who are visual learners can benefit from 
charts, graphic organizers, and diagrams, while auditory learners may benefit from lectures and 
discussions. To enhance the reading experience of higher-level readers and help those who struggle with 
reading comprehension, we have incorporated audiobooks into our curriculum. Our hands-on experiences 
support tactile learning. We also encourage students to express their knowledge through various means, 
such as art or music, to engage different learning styles and stimulate creativity. By utilizing different 
teaching methods, we aim to provide a more comprehensive education that meets the unique needs of 
every student. 
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Instructional strategies refer to the various methods and techniques used by teachers to facilitate student 
learning. In our school, instructional strategies include classroom lectures, interactive discussions, group 
work, project-based learning, place-based learning, technology-based instruction, differentiation within 
instructional content, and hands-on learning.  

Incorporating digital resources and multimedia tools into their lessons, teachers utilize technology to 
enhance their teaching methods. By providing students with various reading materials, videos, and online 
learning activities, they aim to deepen the students' understanding of the subject matter. To cater to the 
diverse range of learners in our school, differentiated instruction is an effective strategy. By adjusting the 
level of challenge and support provided to different students, teachers ensure that each student can learn 
and grow according to their own needs and abilities while still striving for state standards. Our school 
achieves this by providing not only differentiated instruction but also differentiated independent learning 
through online programs that correlate with our curriculum and hands-on activities.  

To promote independent learning, we offer students choices in their practice activities. For instance, 
teachers may require students to work on a particular skill, but students can choose how to practice that 
skill independently. Combining various instructional strategies can create an engaging and inclusive 
learning environment that supports the diverse needs of students in our school.  

At MCA, the board is committed to developing and maintaining a high-quality school. However, 
summative and formative evaluation tools revealed learning loss in 2019-2021, which the board finds 
unsatisfactory. The board eagerly awaits the NWEA and ILEARN results to monitor the progress of the 
recovery. 
See: 

Attachment 7: School accountability/performance report 2021-2022: 

Organization and Compliance 

The board acknowledges current and future challenges exist. 

1. Enrollment

MCA’s enrollment grew quickly after opening in 2015 and fell significantly during and after the 
pandemic.  
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Our board and administrative team are working hard to analyze the reasons behind the 
fluctuations in our student enrollment. Based on our observations, we suspect that the initial 

excitement surrounding MCA as a new charter school, as well as the local publicity it received, 
led to higher-than-expected enrollment numbers. However, some families who had to travel from 

far away, such as Wayne County, opted to enroll their children in schools closer to home. 

Furthermore, we thought expanding to include grades 7 and 8 was a logical step, but it has not 
produced the desired results. Over half of the students who were transitioning from grade 6 to 
grade 7 chose to enroll in local traditional public schools instead because of sports and social 

opportunities before high school. 

As a result, our board has instructed the administration to gather data from students who have 
left the school to better understand their reasons for doing so. 

Based on several local factors, such as the shutdown of Milroy Elementary, economic progress in 
the vicinity, a successful pre-k initiative, and closures in nearby school systems, we anticipate 
the number of enrolled students to stabilize at roughly 134. As of now, MCA intends to sustain 
this enrollment instead of striving for expansion, which could lead to financial uncertainty. 
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2. Special Educa.on

The board acknowledges that MCA has historically catered to a higher percentage of students 
with IEPs, ranging between 36% and 42%, in contrast to the traditional public schools in the 
locality, which serve only 17%. We anticipate that this trend will persist. Feedback and statistics 
indicate that our students thrive and appreciate the inclusive approach of our experiential, 
location-based learning programs. Moreover, a seasoned special education instructor collaborates 
closely with the entire faculty to ensure that instruction is tailored to meet individual student 
needs. 

3. Financial

In the spring of 2022, the board initiated measures to establish the ideal size for MCA, which is 
expected to accommodate between 116 and 140 students. Enrolment directly affects revenue, but 
we believe that small schools can remain financially viable if facility costs are kept to a 
minimum and staffing is appropriately managed. The board was fully cognizant that there was a 
need to adjust staffing levels and configuration, such as transitioning from K-8 to K-6. Our 
efforts to right-size the school will commence in 2023-2024. 

Section II: School Finances 

MCA has partnered with Indiana Charters to handle accounting and payroll tasks. Each transaction 
involves at least three individuals, from start to finish. MCA's accounting system is compliant with the 
State Board of Accounts (SBOA) and is their property. Every month, the board receives management 
reports that include a statement of net assets, revenue and expenditure statements, transaction listings, and 
budget vs. actual analysis. Indiana Charters is a certified partner of ADP payroll services, which provides 
payroll and tax-related software resources. 

At each monthly meeting, the board reviews all financial transactions and signs off on each check before 
it is distributed. Only board-designated individuals can approve expenses, not Indiana Charters' 
employees. The board treasurer interacts with Indiana Charters' finance team weekly to submit invoices 
for payment and verify payroll. 

Attachment 8: Budget Workbook  (Link to Excel File) 
Attachment 9: Budget Narrative 
Attachment 10: Audited Financial Statements 
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Section III: Portfolio Review and Performance Record 

Attachment 11: Academic Performance Workbook 
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Mays Community Academy 

Attachment 

Board Resumes 
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Deanna R. Disney
Phone: 317.430.2485 ~ email: DisneFamily@myomnicity.com 

OBJECTIVE_______ 

To secure a position that would maximize my management skills, training experience, education, and 
professional background for growth potential within the company and to facilitate positive office 
communication. 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

Watch Communications 02/14 to Present 
Director of Inside Sales 

∙ Manage and support the Inside Sales team through coaching, training, monitoring of phone calls and
review of processes.

∙ Verify and process sales commissions
∙ Create list for the sales teams from ex-customers and previous leads, internal lead generation to

optimize sales.
∙ Manage the programs used by the sales team to process a sale, update data, fields, forms, and price

book.
∙ Work with The Executive teams and Company Directors on a daily basis to handle day-to-day

operations and projects.
∙ Monitor trends in areas where service is needed and/or where customers have canceled to help

determine our plan of action.

Broadband Wireless/Omnicity  01/10 to 02/14 
Purchased by Watch Communications 
Senior Sales Representative 

∙ Respond to customer inquiries regarding internet service.  Determine expectations, analyze their
needs and qualifications, and offer the best possible product.

∙ Sale the benefit of our product versus other products and companies in the marketplace.
∙ Build calling list and scripts for nightshift calling campaigns.
∙ Document the details discussed with the customer in the lead so all parties communicating with the

customer have a history of the conversation.
∙ Follow-up on returns ISS results and set-up service for a new client
∙ Monitor trends in areas where service is needed and/or where customers have canceled to help

determine our plan of action.

Rush County Schools  04/08 to 01/10
Substitute Teacher

∙ Responsible for the day-to-day lesson plans and management of the classroom schedule during the
teacher’s absence.
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VekStar, Inc 03/06 to 08/07 
Campaign Manager 

∙ Assigned and monitored the schedule for staff and business clients for daily, weekly, and monthly
performance

∙ Built and analyzed campaigns, databases, scripts and calling lists for business-to-consumers and
business-to-business clients

∙ Managed a team consisting of dialer operators, quality control, team leaders and a call center staff
ranging from 45 to 90 reps.

∙ Assisted with management and training for the inside sales staff of 45 to 90 employees
∙ Point person for client relations concerns regarding leads and performance

Innovative Marketing Consultants 01/00 to 03/06 
Production Manager 

∙ Analyzed, managed, and reported on the data performance for 45-60 clients on a weekly basis for
campaign profitability and cost effectiveness

∙ Translated business requirements into analytical specifications, performing analysis/models,
translating results into actionable recommendations and present findings to Executive Management

∙ Researched and communicated issues regarding past and current market trends for our product,
increased sales per hour from 0.9 to 1.3 within a 12-month period.

∙ Loaded, reviewed, and interpreted the quality of the data and areas for improvement, also created
new data list based on results to increase cost effectiveness of campaigns

∙ Interviewed, hired, trained, and supervised call center staff

EDUCATION 

University of Evansville Evansville, IN 
∙ B.S. Mass Communications focus Public Relations
∙ Student Congress Member of the Year
∙ Finance and Budget Committee

Harlaxton College England 
∙ Study Abroad Program – Harlaxton College, Grantham, England
∙ Student Government President - Fall Term
∙ Dean’s Award

Culver Girls Academy Culver, IN 
∙ High School Diploma
∙ Indianapolis Culver Club - Alumni Association President 2004-2007

SUMMARY OF SKILLS 
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∙ Extensive practical hands-on experience with several software programs, including Microsoft Word,
Excel, and Access

∙ Motivated in developing interoffice and client-based relations
∙ Analytical and detail oriented with superb multitasking skills
∙ Effective working independently or as a cooperative team member
∙ Strong work ethic

∙ Type 70+ WPM
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INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date: 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOL INC 
2028 E 800 N 
RUSHVILLE, IN 46173 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
47-3449974 

DLN: 
17053154336005 

Contact Person: 
MRS. KREBS 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 31 

Public Charity Status: 
170(b) (1) (A) (ii) 

Form 990 Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
March 18, 2015 

contribution Deductibility: 
Yes 

Addendum Applies: 
No 

ID# 31072 

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax 
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax 
under section SOl(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. contributions to you are 
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive 
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106 
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions 
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records. 

Organizations exempt under section SOl(c) (3) of the Code are further classified 
as either public charities or private foundations. We determined that you are 
a public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this 
letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt 
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar 
to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for SOl(c) (3) Public Charities, 
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Letter 947 

62



-2-

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOL INC 

Sincerely, 

#f~ 
Jeffrey I. Cooper 
Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 
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BY-LAWS OF 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 

(A Non-Profit Corporation) 

ARTICLE I 

General 

Section 1. Name. The name of the corporation is Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. (the 

"Corporation"). 

Section 2. Registered Office and Registered Agent. The post office address of the 

Corporation's registered office at the time of adoption of these Bylaws (the "Bylaws") is 929 South St. 

Mays, IN 4615 5. The registered agent in charge of the registered office at the time of adoption of these 

Bylaws is Nansi Custer. 

Section 3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of July 

and end on the last day of June next succeeding. 

ARTICLEII­
ORGANIZATION 

Section 2.1. Purpose and Mission._The purposes ofthis Corporation, as expressed in its Articles of 

Incorporation, shall be for the purpose of transacting any or all lawful business for which corporations 

may be incorporated under the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991 (the "1991 Act") and to 

operate within the meaning of Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. The specific 

purpose of the Corporation is to assist with the establishment, development and administration of charter 

schools, and to make grants to further elementary, middle and high school educational programs and 

facilities and other capital needs for such schools providing elementary, middle and high school 

educational programs through charter schools, and other charitable activities and to distribute the whole 

or any part of the income therefrom and the principal thereof exclusively for such purposes, either directly 

or by contributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 50l(c)(3) of the 

Internal Revenue Code and the Regulations issued pursuant thereto (the "Code"), as they now exist or as 

they may hereafter be amended. 

Section 2.2. Non-Discrimination. The Corporation shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 

religion, national origin, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, status as a Vietnam-era or special 

disabled Veteran, or other protected class in accordance with applicable federal or state laws in hiring or 

other employment practices of the School. Further, the School shall be open to all students in its 

authorized geographic area on a space available basis and shall not discriminate in its admission policies 

or practices on the basis of race, gender, religion, ethnicity or disability. The School shall conduct all of 

its activities in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal anti-discrimination laws, as well as 
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in accordance with all other laws and regulations applicable to the operation of the charter public 

schools in the state of Indiana. 

ARTICLE llI 
Members 

Section 3.1 The Corporation shall have not have any members. 

ARTICLE IV 

Board of Directors 

Section 4.1. Directors. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed, controlled, and 

conducted by, and under the supervision of, the Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of the 

Articles of Incorporation (the "Articles") and these Bylaws. The Board of Directors shall have the 

number of members, not less than three (3) and not greater than nine (9), as designated by resolution 

of the Board of Directors from time to time. At aU times all members of the Board of Directors shall 

be residents of the State of Indiana, and at least one-half of the members of the Board of Directors 

shall, as of the date of election or appointment to the board, be residents of any Indiana county of 

residence of one or more current students at the charter school operated by the Corporation (the 

"School"). 

No individual may serve on the Board of Directors if that individual has been convicted of any 

offense set forth in Indiana Code 20-26-5-1 l(b ), any successor statute, or of any offense substantially 

equivalent to any of the offenses listed in LC. 20-26-5-11 (b) in which the judgment of conviction was 

entered under the law of any other federal or state jurisdiction unless the candidacy of such individual is 

approved by the School's Authorizer (as the term "Authorizer" is defined in IC 20-24-1-2.5) (the 

"School's Sponsor"). If order to effectuate this requirement, at least fourteen (14) days before an 

individual is seated as a member of the Board of Directors, an Expanded Criminal History Check (as 

defined by IC 20-26-2-1.5) shall be performed as to such director. If the Organizer is leasing from a 

religious organization, no member of the religious board and no religious leader of the religious 

organization may simultaneously serve on the Corporation's Board of Directors. 

At the regular meeting of the Board of Directors immediately preceding the expiration of the 

term of any director, the Board of Directors may elect a new director to replace a director whose term 

will expire, or has expired, and each such new director shall serve for a term of not more than four ( 4) 

years, or such other period as prescribed by the directors at the time of such election, and until his or 

her successor is elected and qualified. No director shall serve more than three (3) successive terms. 

Once a director has served two (2) full four ( 4)-year terms, at least one (l) year must elapse before he 

or she again may be elected or appointed to the Board of Directors. The terms of the Board shall be 

staggered such that no more than one current board member rotates off the board at any given time. 

The Corporation shall notify the sponsor of the School promptly upon the election of any new member 
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of the Board of Directors. All newly elected directors shall participate in a board training session 

approved by the School's Sponsor. 

In order to ensure continuity among the directors of the Corporation, the terms of the members 

of the Board of Directors may be staggered as necessary. 

Section 4.2. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have all powers and authority for the 

management of the business, property, and affairs of the Corporation, except as expressly provided 

herein, and may take such lawful acts that the Board of Directors deems proper and appropriate to 

promote the purposes and objectives of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may delegate to 

officers of the Corporation such powers as it may see fit for specified periods of time or in connection 

with specified matters. Except as specifically set forth to the contrary herein, the Board may not take 

any action, except upon the approval thereof by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board 

present at a meeting at which a quorum of at least 60% of the Directors are present. The affirmative 

vote of a majority of the Directors shall be necessary for all actions by the Board relating to the 

following: 

4.2.1 Approval of charitable gifts, transfers, distributions, and grants by the Corporation to 

other entities; 

4.2.2 Adoption of an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws; 

4.2.3 Organizztion of a subsidiary or affiliate by the Corporation; and 

4.2.4 Approval of any merger, consolidation or sale or other transfer of all or a substantial 

part of the assets of the Corporation. 

Section 4.3. Quorum and Approval of Actions. A majority of the directors in office immediately 

before a regular or special meeting begins shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business 

properly to come before the Board of Directors. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles or these 

Bylaws, the approval of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall 

be the act of the Board of Directors. A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum exists, 

may adjourn any meeting of the Board to another time and place. Notice of any such adjourned meeting 

shall be given to the Directors who were not present at the time of adjournment. 

Section 4.4. Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold regular meetings, as fixed by 

these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board of Directors, for the purpose of transacting such business as 

properly may come before the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall hold at least six (6) 

regular meetings and shall hold at least one (1) regular meeting during summer break. All regular 

meetings shall be held at the physical facility housing the charter school unless such facility is not 

reasonably available by reason of construction or casualty, in which event regular meetings shall be held 

at such location as may be approved in advance by the School's Sponsor. 

Section 4.5. Executive Sessions. Any Board member may call an Executive Session during any 

special or regular Board meeting for issues concerning personnel or other matters permitted under the 
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Indiana Open Door Law. All persons except Board members may be excluded from such Executive 

Sessions. Following such meetings, an officer shall provide a general description of the matters 

discussed to be provided as the minutes of said Executive Session. No action may be taken in an 

Executive Session. 

Section 4.6. Special Meetings. Notwithstanding the preceding Section 4 of this Article IV, the 

Board of Directors may hold special meetings, defined as any meeting other than regularly scheduled 

meetings as set forth in Section 4, for any lawful purpose, aside from the election of members of the 

Board of Directors, upon not less than two (2) business days' notice, as described in Section 7 of this 

Article IV, and upon call by the Chair and at least one (1) other member of the Board of Directors, or by 

two (2) or more members of the Board of Directors. A special meeting shall be held at such date and 

time as specified in the notice of the meeting. All special meetings shall be held at the physical facility 

housing the charter school unless such facility is not reasonably available by reason of construction or 

casualty, in which event special meetings shall be held at such location as may be approved in advance 

by the School's Sponsor. 

Section 4. 7. Compliance with Indiana Open Door Law. Notwithstanding any other provision of 

these Bylaws, the Corporation shall comply in all respects with the Indiana Open Door Law (currently 

codified at Indiana Code ("IC") section 5-14-1.5-1, et seq.), and any corresponding provision of 

subsequent Indiana law, in connection with all regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors. 

Without limiting the foregoing, the Board of Directors shall post notice of any regular or special meeting 

not less than two (2) business days before such meeting at the place at which such meeting shall be held 

and shall provide such other notice of such meeting as shall be required under the Indiana Open Door 

Law. 

Section 4.8. Notice of Special Meetings. Written notice of the date, time, and place of each 

special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be communicated, delivered, or mailed by the Secretary 

of the Corporation, or by the person or persons calling the meeting, to each member of the Board of 

Directors so that such notice is effective at least two (2) business days before the date of the meeting and 

complies with the Indiana Open Door Law. The notice need not describe the purpose of the special 

meeting. 

Written, electronic, or telefaxed notice, where applicable, shall be effective at the earliest of the 

following: 

(a) When received; 

(b) Five (5) days after the notice is mailed, as evidenced by the postmark or private 

carrier receipt, if mailed correctly addressed to the address listed in the most current records of 

the Corporation; 

( c) On the date shown on the return receipt, if sent by registered or certified United 

States mail, return receipt requested, and the receipt is signed by or ()O behalf of the addressee; 
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or 

(d) Thirty (30) days after the notice is deposited with another method of the United 

States Postal Service other than first class, registered, or certified mail, as evidenced by the 

postmark, if mailed correctly addressed to the address listed in the most current records of the 

Corporation. 

Section 4.9. Waiver of Notice. Notice of a meeting to a director may be waived in a writing 

signed by the director entitled to notice and filed with the minutes or the corporate records. Attendance 

at or participation in any meeting of the Board of Directors shall constitute a waiver oflack of notice or 

defective notice of such meeting unless the director shall, at the beginning of the meeting or promptly 

upon the director's arrival, object to holding the meeting and not vote for or assent to any action taken at 

the meeting. 

Section 4.10. Action by Board. The Board of Directors shall not take action other than at a 

meeting held in compliance with the Open Door Law. 

Section 4.11. Resignation, Removal, and Vacancies. Any director may resign at any time by 

giving written notice of such resignation to the Board of Directors, the Chair, or the Secretary of the 

Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if no time is specified, at 

the time of its receipt by the Board of Directors, the Chair, or the Secretary. The acceptance of a 

resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

A director may be removed for cause by a majority of the directors then in office. Cause shall 

include, but shall not be limited to: 

(a) Violations of applicable law, including (but not limited to): 

(i) Violations of the Indiana Charter School Law; and 

(ii) Actions that would jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the Corporation 

or would subject it to intermediate sanctions under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 

as amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws (the 

"Code"). 

(b) Breach of fiduciary duty and/or commission of an ultra vires act as defined by 

Indiana law, including (but not limited to) a violation of the applicable standard of care under the 

Articles, these Bylaws, or applicable law. 

( c) Breach of any governing document relating to the Corporation, including(but 

not limited to) the Articles, these Bylaws, and the Charter Agreement. 

( d) Inadequate attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors, defined as absence 

from three (3) consecutive meetings or from at least fifty percent ( 50%) of such meetings within 

one ( 1) calendar year. 

Any vacancy on the Board of Directors created by the resignation or removal of a director shall 

be filled by a majority of the directors then in office. 
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Section 4.12. Educational Service Providers. Should the Board of Directors elect to engage an 

educational service provider ("ESP") to manage the School's operations, no member of the 

Corporation's Board of Directors or any of their respective spouses or immediate family members may 

have any direct or indirect ownership, employment, contractual or management interest in such ESP. All 

members of the Board of Directors shall thoroughly familiarize themselves with the contract between the 

Corporation and the ESP and the rights and responsibilities of the Corporation vis-a-vis the ESP. 

Section 4.13. Participation via Telephone. Directors may participate in a meeting of the Board of 

Directors via telephone in accordance with Indiana's Open Door Law. 

Section 4.14. Compensation. No member of the Board of Directors shall receive any 

compensation for serving in such office; provided that, the Corporation may reimburse any member of 

the Board for reasonable expenses incurred in connection with service on the Board. Any such 

reasonable expenses that are not reimbursed by the Corporation shall be construed as a gift to the 

Corporation. 

Section 4.15. Protocol. The Board of Directors shall use Robert's Rules of Order, including the 

preparation and board approval of minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLEV 

Committees 

The Board of Directors may establish advisory committees having such responsibilities as the 

Board of Directors shall specify. Members of such committees may, but need not, be members of the 

Board of Directors. A committee member appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the 

Board of Directors with or without cause. All committee meetings must comply with the Indiana Open 

Door Law. 

ARTICLE VI 

Officers 

Section 6.1. In General. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a President, a Secretary, 

a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board of Directors may otherwise elect. An officer may not 

simultaneously hold more than one (1) office. Each officer shall be elected by the Board of Directors 

and shall serve for one (1) year, or such other period as prescribed by the directors at the time of such 

election, and until the officer's successor is elected and qualified. 

An officer shall be a member of the Board of Directors. Any officer may be removed by the 

Board of Directors at any time by majority vote. Any vacancy in any office shall be filled by the 

Board of Directors, and any person elected to fill such vacancy shall serve until the expiration of the 

term vacated and until his or her successor is elected and qualified. 

Section 6.2. President. The President shall have general supervision, management, control and 

oversight of the business of the Corporation, subject to these Bylaws and subject to the orders of the 

Board of Directors, and shall, in general, perform all the duties usually incident to the office of President 
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or that may be imposed or prescribed by the Board of Directors. The President may enter into and 

execute any and all certificates, contracts, and other instruments of the Corporation that are approved by 

the Board of Directors. The President may delegate, as needed, to any other officer any and all duties of 

the office of President. The President shall also exercise and perform any and all other powers and 

duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

Section 6.3. Secretary. The Secretary shall be the custodian of all papers, books, and records of 

the Corporation other than books of account and financial records. The Secretary shall prepare and enter 

in the minute book the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall 

authenticate records of the Corporation as necessary. The Secretary shall perform the duties usual to 

such position and such other duties as the Board of Directors or the Chair may prescribe. 

Section 6.4. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall prepare and maintain correct and complete records 

of account showing accurately the financial condition of the Corporation. All notes, securities, and 

other assets coming into the possession of the Corporation shall be received, accounted for, and placed 

in safekeeping as the Treasurer may from time to time prescribe. The Treasurer shall furnish, whenever 

requested by the Board of Directors or the Chair, a statement of the fmancial condition of the 

Corporation and shall perform the duties usual to such position and such other duties as the Board of 

Directors or the Chair may prescribe. 

Section 6.5. Other Officers. Each other officer of the Corporation shall perform such duties as the 

Board of Directors or the Chair may prescribe. 

ARTICLE VII 

Property 

The property of the Corporation shall be held and applied in promoting the general purposes of 

the Corporation. No property, including real estate, belonging to the Corporation shall be conveyed or 

encumbered except by authority of a majority vote of the Board. Any such conveyance or encumbrance 

shall be executed by the President in the name of the Corporation, and such instrument shaU be duly 

approved by the Secretary or Treasurer of the Corporation. 

ARTICLE VIII 

Conflicts of Interest 

Section 8.1. General Policy. It is the policy of the Corporation and its Board of Directors that 

the Corporation's directors, officers, and employees carry out their respective duties in a fashion that 

avoids actual, potential, or perceived conflicts of interest. The Corporation's directors, officers, and 

employees shall have the continuing, affirmative duty to report any personal ownership, interest, or 

other relationship that might affect their ability to exercise impartial, ethical, and business-based 

judgments in fulfilling their responsibilities to the Corporation. This policy shall be further subject to 

the following principles: 

(a) Directors, officers, and employees of the Corporation shall conduct their duties 
-7-

70



with respect to potential and actual grantees, contractors, suppliers, agencies, and other persons 

transacting or seeking to transact business with the Corporation in a completely impartial 

manner, without favor or preference based upon any consideration other than the best interests of 

the Corporation. 

(b) Directors, officers, and employees of the Corporation shall not seek or accept 

for themselves or any of their relatives (including spouses, ancestors, and descendants, whether 

by whole or half-blood), from any person or business entity that transacts or seeks to transact 

business with the Corporation, any gifts, entertainment, or other favors relating to their positions 

with the Corporation that exceed common courtesies consistent with ethical and accepted 

business practices. 

( c) If a director, or a director's relative, directly or indirectly owns a significant 

financial interest in, or is employed by, any business entity that transacts or seeks to transact 

business with the Corporation, the director shall disclose that interest or position and shall 

refrain from voting on any issue pertaining to the transaction. 

(d) Officers and employees of the Corporation shall not conduct business on behalf 

of the Corporation with a relative or a business entity in which the officer, employee, or his or 

her relative owns a significant financial interest or by which such officer, employee, or relative 

is employed, except where such dealings have been disclosed to, and specifically approved and 

authorized by, the Board of Directors of the Corporation. 

(e) The Board of Directors may require the Corporation's directors, officers, or 

employees to complete annually ( or as otherwise scheduled by the Board) a disclosure statement 

regarding any actual or potential conflict of interest described in these Bylaws. The disclosure 

statement shall be in such form as may be prescribed by the Board and may include information 

regarding a person's participation as a director, trustee, officer, or employee of any other 

nonprofit organization. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for oversight of all 

disclosures or failures to disclose and for taking appropriate action in the case of any actual or 

potential conflict of interest transaction. 

Section 8.2. Effect of Conflict Provisions. The failure of the Corporation, its Board of 

Directors, or any or all of its directors, officers, or employees to comply with the conflict of interest 

provisions of these Bylaws shall not invalidate, cancel, void, or make voidable any contract, 

relationship, action, transaction, debt, commitment, or obligation of the Corporation that otherwise is 

valid and enforceable under applicable law. 

ARTICLE IX 

Indemnification 

Section 9. I. Indemnification by the Corporation. To the extent not inconsistent with applicable 

law, every person ( and the heirs and personal representatives of such person) who is or was a director, 
-8-
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officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation against all 

liability and reasonable expense that may be incurred by him or her in connection with or resulting from 

any claim, action, suit, or proceeding ( a) if such person is wholly successful with respect thereto or (b) if 

not wholly successful, then if such person is determined ( as provided in Section 3 of this Article IX) to 

have acted in good faith, in what he or she reasonably believed to be the best interests of the Corporation 

(or, in any case not involving the person's official capacity with the Corporation, in what he or she 

reasonably believed to be not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation), and, with respect to any 

criminal action or proceeding, is determined to have had reasonable cause to believe that his or her 

conduct was lawful ( or no reasonable cause to believe that the conduct was unlawful). The termination 

of any claim, action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, settlement (whether with or without court 

approval), or conviction, or upon a plea of guilty or of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not create 

a presumption that a person did not meet the standards of conduct set forth in this Article IX. 

Section 9.2. Definitions. 

(a) As used in this Article IX, the phrase "claim, action, suit, or proceeding" shall 

include any threatened, pending, or completed claim, civil, criminal, administrative, or 

investigative action, suit, or proceeding and all appeals thereof (whether brought by or on behalf 

of the Corporation, any other corporation, or otherwise), whether formal or informal, in which a 

person ( or his or her heirs or personal representatives) may become involved, as a party or 

otherwise: 

(i) By reason of his or her being or having been a director, officer, 

employee, or agent of the Corporation or of any corporation where he or she served as 

such at the request of the Corporation, or 

(ii) By reason of his or her acting or having acted in any capacity in a 

corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, trust, or other organization or entity 

where he or she served as such at the request of the Corporation, or 

(iii) By reason of any action taken or not taken by him or her in any such 

capacity, whether or not he or she continues in such capacity at the time such liability or 

expense shall have been incurred. 

(b) As used in this Article IX, the terms "liability" and "expense" shall include, but 

shall not be limited to, counsel fees and disbursements and amounts of judgments, fines, or 

penalties against, and amounts paid in settlement by or on behalf of, a person. 

( c) As used in this Article IX, the term "wholly successful" shall mean 

(i) termination of any action, suit, or proceeding against the person in question 

without any finding of liability or guilt against him or her, 

(ii) approval by a court, with knowledge of the indemnity provided in this 

Article IX, of a settlement of any action, suit, or proceeding, or 
-9-
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(iii) the expiration of a reasonable period of time after the making of any claim 

or threat of any action, suit, or proceeding without the institution of the same, without 

any payment or promise made to induce a settlement. 

Section 9.3. Entitlement to Indemnification. Every person claiming indemnification under this 

Article IX ( other than one who has been wholly successful with respect to any claim, action, suit, or 

proceeding) shall be entitled to indemnification if (a) special independent legal counsel, which may be 

regular counsel of the Corporation or any other disinterested person or persons, in either case selected by 

the Board of Directors, whether or not a disinterested quorum exists (such counsel or person or persons 

being hereinafter called the "referee"), shall deliver to the Corporation a written finding that such person 

has met the standards of conduct set forth in Section 1 of this Article IX and (b) the Board of Directors, 

acting upon such written finding, so determines. The person claiming indemnification sha11, if 

requested, appear before the referee and answer questions that the referee deems relevant and shall be 

given ample opportunity to present to the referee evidence upon which he or she relies for 

indemnification. The Corporation shall, at the request of the referee, make available facts, opinions,or 

other evidence in any way relevant to the referee's findings that is within the possession or control of the 

Corporation. 

Section 9.4. Relationship to Other Rights. The right of indemnification provided in this Article 

IX shall be in addition to any rights to which any person may otherwise be entitled. 

Section 9.5. Extent of Indemnification. Irrespective of the provisions of this Article IX, the 

Board of Directors may, at any time and from time to time, approve indemnification of directors, 

officers, employees, agents, or other persons to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, or, if not 

permitted, then to any extent not prohibited by such law, whether on account of past or future 

transactions. 

Section 9 .6. Advancement of Expenses. Expenses incurred with respect to any claim, action, 

suit, or proceeding may be advanced by the Corporation (by action of the Board of Directors, whether or 

not a disinterested quorum exists) prior to the fmal disposition thereof upon receipt of an undertaking by 

or on behalf of the recipient to repay such amount unless he or she is entitled to indemnification. 

Section 9.7. Purchase oflnsurance. The Board of Directors is authorized and empowered to 

purchase insurance covering the Corporation's liabilities and obligations under this Article IX and 

insurance protecting the Corporation's directors, officers, employees, agents, or other persons. 

ARTICLEX 

Contracts, Checks, Loans, Deposits, and Gifts 

Section 10.1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize one (1) or more officers, agents, 

or employees of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute any instrument on its behalf. Such 

authorization may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized by the Board of 

Directors, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power to bind the Corporation or to render it 
-10-
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liable for any purpose or amount. 

Section 10.2. Checks. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money by the Corporation 

shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate by 

resolution. Such designation may be general or confined to specific instances. 

Section 10.3. Loans. Unless authorized by the Board of Directors, no loan shall be made by or 

contracted for on behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name. 

Such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances. 

Section 10.4. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited to its credit in such bank, 

banks, or depositaries as the Board of Directors may designate. Such designation may be general or 

confined to specific instances. 

Section 10.5. Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any 

gift, grant, bequest, devise, or other contribution for the purposes of the Corporation on such terms 

and conditions as the Board of Directors shall determine. 

ARTICLE XI 

Amendments 

The power to make, alter, amend, or repeal the Bylaws is vested in the Board of Directors of the 

Corporation; provided, however, that any proposed substantive alteration, amendment, or repeal of these 

Bylaws and any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation must be approved in 

writing by the School's Sponsor prior to the Board of Directors of the Corporation taking any action 

thereon. 

Certificate of Adoption 

I, the duly elected R-esiJ~tof the Corporation, hereby certify that these Bylaws were duly 

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation this 11 day of Ot.-tobe.r ;2 o,IB_. 

Printed Name 
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State of Indiana 
Office of the SecrefaIJ' of State 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

of 

NORTHERN RlTSH COlTNTY SCHOOLS INC. 

L Connie Lawson. Secreta1y of State of Indiana. hereby ce1iify that Atiicles of Incorporation of the aboYe 
Non-Profit Domestic Corporation has been presented to me at my office. accompanied by the fees 
prescribed by law and that the documentation presented conforms to law as prescribed by the proYisions 
of the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991. 

NOW. THEREFORE. with this document I ce1iify that said transaction will become effectiYe 
Wednesday. March 18. 2015. 

In Witness Whereof. I haYe caused to be affixed my 
signature and the seal of the State of Indiana. at the City of 
Indianapolis. March 18. 2015 

CONNIE LAWSON. 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

:!0150318006-B ! :!0150318006-B 
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RECEIVED 03/18/2015 01 :35 PM 

RECEIVED 03/18/2015 01:06 PM APPROVED AND FILED 
CONNIE LAWSON 

INDIANA SECRETARY OF STATE 
3/18/2015 1 :36 PM 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
Formed pursuant to the provisions of the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991. 

ARTICLE I - NAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE 
NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS INC. 

2028 E. 800 N, RUSHVILLE, IN 46173 

ARTICLE II - REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 
ALEXANDRA CURLIN 
8555 CEDAR PLACE DR. SUITE 112, INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240 

The Signator represents that the registered agent named in the application has consented to the 
appointment of registered agent. 

ARTICLE Ill - INCORPORA TORS 
ALEXANDRA M. CURLIN 
8555 CEDAR PLACE DR. SUITE 112, INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240 
Signature: ALEXANDRA M CURLIN 

ARTICLE IV - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Effective Date: 3/18/2015 

Type of Corporation: Public Benefit Corporation 
Does the corporation have members?: Yes 

The purposes/nature of business 
TO OPERATE A CHARTER SCHOOL 

Distribution of assets on dissolution or final liquidation 

PON THE DISSOLUTION OF THE CORPORATION, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL, AFTER 
PAYING OR MAKING PROVISION FOR THE PAYMENT OF ALL OF THE LIABILITIES OF THE 
CORPORATION, DISPOSE OF ALL OF THE ASSETS OF THE CORPORATION, EXCLUSIVELY FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF THE CORPORATION IN SUCH MANNER, OR TO SUCH ORGANIZATION OR 
ORGANIZATIONS ORGANIZED AND OPERATED EXCLUSIVELY FOR CHARITABLE, EDUCATIONAL, 
RELIGIOUS OR SCIENTIFIC PURPOSES, AS SHALL AT THE TIME QUALIFY AS AN EXEMPT 
ORGANIZATION OR ORGANIZATIONS UNDER SECTION 501 (C)(3) OF THE CODE (OR THE 
CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF ANY FUTURE UNITED STATES INTERNAL REVENUE 

Page 1 of 2 Control Number 2015031800643 / DCN 2015031820053 
Transaction Id TR15031800141 76



LAW), AS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL DETERMINE. ANY OF SUCH ASSETS NOT SO 
DISPOSED OF SHALL BE DISPOSED OF BY THE COURT HAVING PROPER JURISDICTION IN THE 
COUNTY WHERE THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION IS THEN LOCATED, 
EXCLUSIVELY FOR SUCH PURPOSES OR TO SUCH ORGANIZATION OR ORGANIZATIONS, AS 
SAID COURT SHALL DETERMINE, WHICH ARE ORGANIZED AND OPERATED EXCLUSIVELY FOR 
SUCH PURPOSES. 

Page 2 of 2 Control Number 2015031800643 / DCN 2015031820053 
Transaction Id TR15031800141 
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Lauren S. Yoke 
1318 Boyer St. Richmond, IN 47374 | 765-277-4191 | lzuzolo17@gmail.com 

Objective: To obtain a principal position in the educational field for grades K-6, that will showcase my 
strengths and what I can bring to a strong team of teachers and staff. 

Certifications:  Indiana Professional Teaching License K-6, Emergency Administrative License, 
CPR/First Aid/CPI current, Suicide Prevention 

EDUCATION   
Ball State University Online, Muncie, IN    (2021-current) 
Internship: Lincoln Middle High School (6-12 grade), Principal, Mrs. Renee Lakes 
Internship: Elementary School (to be completed) 
Building Level Administration License 
Expected: December 2023 

University of Phoenix Online, Jacksonville, FL        (2010-2012) 
Student Teaching: Fort Caroline Elementary School, Kindergarten, Mrs. Mary Hardin 
Master of Arts in Education/Elementary Teacher Education 
Completed: June 2012 

Jacksonville University, Jacksonville, FL       (2003-2007) 
Bachelor of Arts in English
Completed: May 2007 

Current/EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Principal, Northern Rush County Schools, Mays, IN    (Aug 2021-current) 
Mays Community Academy and Lil Tigers Preschool 

• Plan and lead staff meetings
• Plan and lead biweekly PLCs
• Mentor new teachers and plan professional development
• Monitor learning logs and lesson plans
• Help with administrative duties such as grants, documentation, and charter agreements
• Lead the staff with compassion, directiveness, and management
• Purchase curriculum and other classroom needs

Teacher, Northern Rush County Schools, Mays, IN  (Aug 2015-Jul 2021) 
Mays Community Academy, 1st, 2nd, 3rd grades 

• Instruct daily lesson plans in all subject areas
• Facilitate small group learning to differentiate learning
• Integrate standards and objectives into all areas of content
• Collaborate with teachers, administration, and team on planning and activities
• Serve on committees as expected by the school board and administration
• Attend PLCs to discuss and go over classroom data and instruction

Teacher, Imagine Charter Schools, Indianapolis, IN                  (Feb- June 2016) 
Imagine Ind Life Sciences Academy- West, 5th grade 

• Instruct daily lesson plans in all areas
• Facilitate small group learning to differentiate learning
• Integrate standards and objectives into all areas of content
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• Collaborate with teachers, coaches, and admin on planning and activities

Substitute Teacher, Local Indiana Community Schools  (Sept-Dec 2015) 
Richmond and Muncie Community Schools, IN 
Elementary and Middle grades 

• Follow lesson plans
• Improvise when there isn’t a plan provided
• Teach and educate as if I were the regular classroom teacher

Teacher, St. Lucie County School District, Ft Pierce, FL  (Jul 2014-Jun 2015) 
Lakewood Park Elementary, 1st grade 

• Instruct daily lessons in all areas
• Facilitate small group learning to differentiate instruction
• Integrate standards and objectives into all areas of content
• Collaborate with the first-grade team on planning and activities

Teacher, Boarding School and Day School, Richmond, IN (Feb 2013- Jun 2014) 
New Creations Christian School, all grades (K-12th) 

• Facilitate learning, by giving one-on-one help in areas of need
• Help students learn new concepts, while still keeping independent learning present
• Experience with GradPoint and Ignitia (SOS)

Kelly Educational Staffing, Duval County Schools, Jacksonville, FL  (Aug-Dec 2012) 
Public, Bolles, and KIPP, K-8 

• Facilitated instruction from teacher notes
• Instructed students on new concepts, based on teacher notes and planning

AmeriCorps VISTA, Florida Campus Compact, Jacksonville, FL    (2010-2012) 
Service-Learning Center, Jacksonville University 

• Planned successful community service projects for students of Jacksonville University
• Communicated with Community Partners about plans and projects
• Worked closely with students, faculty/staff, and the Service-Learning Committee

Eagles Nest Christian Academy, Panama City, FL              (2007- 2008) 
Language Arts Teacher for Grades 7-12 (Private, SpEd, Gifted)

• Prepared and administered lesson plans to students
• Communicated to parents/guardians about student performance and developed education success

plans for each child
• Interacted with school administration to develop methods of teaching and learning to help

publicize school

References 
• Mrs. Alicia Weatherly, NRCS Teacher, primary grades, aliciaweatherly@mays.k12.in.us, 765-

645-5577, current employee
• Ms. Nansi Custer, School Board President, NRCS, nansicuster@mays.k12.in.us, 765-645-5577,

current school board president
• Mrs. Donita Davis, NRCS instructional aide & substitute, donitadavis@mays.k12.in.us, 765-645-

5577, current employee
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Mays Community Academy, Lewisville 9955

Corporation Results State

Indicator '18-'19 '19-'20 '20-'21 '21-'22 Total

Student Enrollment 213 218 193 152 1,120,125

Number of Certified Teachers 12 11 10 10 76,712

Teacher Salary Range - Minimum $32,000 $30,000 $32,000

Teacher Salary Range - Maximum $32,500 $32,000 $32,000

Number of Students in Special Education 85 87 78 62 182,581

Percent of Students in Special Education 39.9 39.9 40.4

Number of Students in Gifted and Talented 
Education

1 0 1

Percent of Students in Gifted and Talented 
Education

0.5 0.9 0.5

Number of Students Receiving Free or 
Reduced Lunches

127 132 118 91 476,951

Percent of Students Receiving Free or 
Reduced Price Lunches

59.6 60.6 61.1

Percent of Limited English Proficiency 
Students

0.5

Percent of Students in Foster Care 3.29 0.5 1.0

Intra District Mobilty 0 0 0 0 0

Inter District Mobility 18.6 20.4 15.9 24.3 0

Number of Incidents of Restraint 5 26 10 0 7,179

Number of Incidents of Restriant Involving 
a School Resource Officer

0 1 2 0 413

Number of Incidents of Seclusion 9 13 6 0 6,658

Number of Incidents of Seclusion Involving 
a School Resource Officer

0 0 0 0 220

Corporation Goals for Expenditure Categories in Indiana Code 20-42.5-3-5

1 of 3

*** Suppressed

Mays Community Academy
2022 Annual Performance Report
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Mays Community Academy, Lewisville 7231

School Results State

Indicator '18-'19 '19-'20 '20-'21 '21-'22 Total

A-F Accountability Grade A A N/A N/A

Student Enrollment 213 218 193 152 1,120,125

Number of Certified Teachers 12 11 10 10 76,712

Percentage of Students Passing IREAD 90.9 N/A 85.7 85.7 80.3

* Grade 3 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Math Standard

53.6 N/A 50.0 60.0 51.9

* Grade 3 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Language Arts Standard

28.6 N/A 40.0 26.7 40.7

* Grade 4 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Math Standard

23.1 N/A *** 40.0 47.5

* Grade 4 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Language Arts Standard

30.8 N/A *** 30.0 41.1

* Grade 4 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Science Standard

23.1 N/A *** 35.0 38.4

* Grade 5 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Math Standard

41.9 N/A 15.8 16.7 40.9

* Grade 5 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Language Arts Standard

48.4 N/A 36.8 0.0 41.0

* Grade 5 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Social Science Standard

48.4 N/A 21.1 0.0 38.4

* Grade 6 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Math Standard

21.7 N/A 4.8 11.8 35.6

* Grade 6 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Language Arts Standard

43.5 N/A 28.6 23.5 39.0

* Grade 6 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Science Standard

43.5 N/A 19.0 17.6 38.9

* Grade 7 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Math Standard

0 0 *** 9.1 31.9

* Grade 7 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Language Arts Standard

0 0 *** 63.6 42.4

* Grade 8 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Math Standard

0 0 *** 0.0 29.8

* Grade 8 Percent Passing ISTEP+/ ILEARN
Language Arts Standard

0 0 *** 50.0 43.1

Pupil Enrollment to Certified Employee 
Ratio

15.2 19.8 19.3 15.1 16.2

Attendance Rate 95.0 93.9 90.2 90.9 92.9

Number of Students with More Than 10 
Unexcused Days Absent

17 24 53 38 169,811

* In 2014-15 Indiana transitioned to new, more rigorous college-and-career ready standards and a new statewide
assessment to measure these standards.  Therefore, results are not comparable to previous data.

2 of 3

*** Suppressed

Mays Community Academy
2022 Annual Performance Report
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Mays Community Academy, Lewisville 7231

School Results State

Indicator '18-'19 '19-'20 '20-'21 '21-'22 Total

Number of Students absent greater than 
10% of School Year

18 28 42 41 209932

Number of Students Suspended 16 7 15 13 97,972

Number of Out of School Suspensions 16 7 15 13 70,183

* In 2014-15 Indiana transitioned to new, more rigorous college-and-career ready standards and a new statewide
assessment to measure these standards.  Therefore, results are not comparable to previous data.

3 of 3

*** Suppressed

Mays Community Academy
2022 Annual Performance Report
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School Name:
Planned Opening Year: 2024
Planned Location:

Enrollment Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Kindergarten 15 18 18 18 18
Grade 1 15 18 18 18 18
Grade 2 18 18 18 18 18
Grade 3 18 20 21 22 22
Grade 4 21 21 21 22 22
Grade 5 21 21 22 22 22
Grade 6 20 20 22 22 22
Grade 7 0 0 0 0 0
Grade 8 0 0 0 0 0
Grade 9 0 0 0 0 0

Grade 10 0 0 0 0 0
Grade 11 0 0 0 0 0
Grade 12 0 0 0 0 0

Total K-12 Enrollment: 128 136 140 142 142

Estimated % of Students:
Special Education 36% 36% 36% 36% 36%
English Learners 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Qualify for Free/Reduced Priced Lunch 62% 62% 62% 62% 62%

K-12 Distribution ############## ############## ############## ############## ##############

Notes & Definitions

Note:  Year 1 Projection based on acutal data and previous year enrollment.          
Note:  Known special education population includes 12 - 15 students with severe disabilities. 
Revenue is adjusted for these  

School Enrollment Projections
(must align with Charter Application Enrollment Plan)

Mays Community Academy

Rush County Schools
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School Name:
Planned Opening Year:

Number Average Salary Total Expense Number Average Salary Total Expense Number Average Salary Total Expense Number Average Salary Total Expense Number Average Salary Total Expense
INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF
Elementary Teacher(K-6) 7 39,000.00$      273,000.00$      7 40,170.00$      281,190.00$     7 40,973.40$      286,813.80$     7 41,792.87$      292,550.08$     7 42,628.73$      298,401.08$      
Title I Certified 1 37,000.00$      37,000.00$      1 38,110.00$      38,110.00$        1 38,872.20$      38,872.20$        1 39,649.64$      39,649.64$        1 40,442.64$      40,442.64$         
Special Education Teacher 1 49,000.00$      49,000.00$      1 50,470.00$      50,470.00$        1 51,479.40$      51,479.40$        2 45,000.00$      90,000.00$        2 45,900.00$      91,800.00$         
ART Teacher 1 31,000.00$      31,000.00$      1 31,930.00$      31,930.00$        1 32,568.60$      32,568.60$        1 33,219.97$      33,219.97$        1 33,884.37$      33,884.37$         
PE (1/2) 0.5 36,000.00$      18,000.00$      0.5 37,080.00$      18,540.00$        0.5 37,821.60$      18,910.80$        0.5 38,578.03$      19,289.02$        0.5 39,349.59$      19,674.80$         

-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      

-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      

Total Instructional Staff: 10.5 $408,000.00 10.5 420,240.00$     10.5 428,644.80$     11.5 474,708.71$     11.5 484,202.88$      

ADMIN & SUPPORT
Principal 1 60,000.00$      60,000.00$      1 61,200.00$      61,200.00$        1 62,424.00$      62,424.00$        1 63,672.48$      63,672.48$        1 64,945.93$      64,945.93$         
Healh Assistant 1 33,000.00$      33,000.00$      1 33,660.00$      33,660.00$        1 34,333.20$      34,333.20$        1 35,019.86$      35,019.86$        1 35,720.26$      35,720.26$         
Transportation Director 1 34,000.00$      34,000.00$      1 34,680.00$      34,680.00$        1 35,373.60$      35,373.60$        1 36,081.07$      36,081.07$        1 36,802.69$      36,802.69$         
Administrative Assistant 1 24,000.00$      24,000.00$      1 24,480.00$      24,480.00$        1 24,969.60$      24,969.60$        1 25,468.99$      25,468.99$        1 25,978.37$      25,978.37$         
Cafeteria Manager 1 34,000.00$      34,000.00$      1 34,680.00$      34,680.00$        1 35,373.60$      35,373.60$        1 36,081.07$      36,081.07$        1 36,802.69$      36,802.69$         
Part-time Cafeteria 3 12,000.00$      36,000.00$      3 12,240.00$      36,720.00$        3 12,484.80$      37,454.40$        3 12,734.50$      38,203.49$        3 12,989.19$      38,967.56$         
Special Ed Instrutional Assistant 1 23,000.00$      23,000.00$      1 23,460.00$      23,460.00$        1 23,929.20$      23,929.20$        1 24,407.78$      24,407.78$        1 24,895.94$      24,895.94$         
Instructional Assistant 2 23,000.00$      46,000.00$      2 23,460.00$      46,920.00$        2 23,929.20$      47,858.40$        2 24,407.78$      48,815.57$        2 24,895.94$      49,791.88$         
Pre-K Instructor 1 35,000.00$      35,000.00$      1 35,700.00$      35,700.00$        1 36,414.00$      36,414.00$        1 37,142.28$      37,142.28$        1 37,885.13$      37,885.13$         
Student Resource Officer 1 51,000.00$      51,000.00$      1 52,020.00$      52,020.00$        1 53,060.40$      53,060.40$        1 54,121.61$      54,121.61$        1 55,204.04$      55,204.04$         
Custodian 1 53,000.00$      53,000.00$      1 54,060.00$      54,060.00$        1 55,141.20$      55,141.20$        1 56,244.02$      56,244.02$        1 57,368.90$      57,368.90$         

0 -$      -$      0 -$      -$      0 -$      -$      0 -$      -$      
0 -$      -$      0 -$      -$      0 -$      -$      0 -$      -$      
0 -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      

-$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      -$      
Total Admin & Support Staff: 14 429,000.00$      14 437,580.00$     14 446,331.60$     14 455,258.23$     14 464,363.40$      

$837,000.00 857,820.00$     874,976.40$     929,966.94$     948,566.28$      
Rate/Per Total Expense Rate/Per Total Expense Rate/Per Total Expense Rate/Per Total Expense Rate/Per Total Expense

BENEFITS
Health Insurance (2) 7,800.00$         191,100.00$      7,800.00$         191,100.00$     7,800.00$         191,100.00$     7,800.00$         198,900.00$     7,800.00$         198,900.00$      
Retirement Contributions (3) 9.00% 75,330.00$      9.00% 77,203.80$        9.00% 78,747.88$        9.00% 83,697.02$        9.00% 85,370.97$         
Social Security 6.20% 51,894.00$      6.20% 53,184.84$        6.20% 54,248.54$        6.20% 57,657.95$        6.20% 58,811.11$         
Medicare 1.45% 12,136.50$      1.45% 12,438.39$        1.45% 12,687.16$        1.45% 13,484.52$        1.45% 13,754.21$         
Unemployment 0.09% 753.30$      0.09% 772.04$      0.09% 787.48$      0.09% 836.97$      0.09% 853.71$      

Other Compensation (4) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

SUMMARY
Total Staff 24.5 Total Staff 24.5 Total Staff 24.5 Total Staff 25.5 Total Staff 25.5

837,000.00$      857,820.00$     874,976.40$     929,966.94$     948,566.28$      
331,213.80$     334,699.07$     337,571.05$     354,576.47$     357,690.00$      

1,168,213.80$      1,192,519.07$ 1,212,547.45$ 1,284,543.41$ 1,306,256.27$  
12.19 12.95 13.33 12.35 12.35
5.22 5.55 5.71 5.57 5.57

5-Year Projected Staffing Plan

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Total Salaries:
Total Benefits:
Total Salaries + Benefits: Total Salaries + Benefits: Total Salaries + Benefits:

Student/teacher ratio
Student/staff ratio Student/staff ratio

Total Salaries: Total Salaries: Total Salaries:
Total Benefits: Total Benefits: Total Benefits:

Student/teacher ratio Student/teacher ratio
Student/staff ratio Student/staff ratio

Total Salaries:
Total Benefits:

Total Salaries + Benefits:
Student/teacher ratio
Student/staff ratio

Total Salaries + Benefits:
Student/teacher ratio
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School Name: Mays Community Academy
Planned Opening Year: 2024

Projected Enrollment 0 128 136 140 142 142

1,009,536.00$    1,099,312.48$    1,192,072.63$    1,241,133.41$    1,274,125.52$    
264,665.00$   269,958.30$   280,864.62$   286,481.91$   292,211.55$   

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

192,000.00$   197,760.00$   203,692.80$   209,803.58$   216,097.69$   
7,000.00$   7,000.00$   7,000.00$   7,000.00$   7,000.00$   

600.00$    618.00$    636.54$    655.64$    675.31$    lunch and breakfast
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

15,000.00$   15,450.00$   15,913.50$   16,390.91$   16,882.63$   
$ -

4,164.00$   4,288.92$   4,417.59$   4,550.12$   4,686.62$   
1,000.00$   1,030.00$   1,060.90$   1,092.73$   1,125.51$   Early Interbention

37,500.00$   38,625.00$   39,783.75$   40,977.26$   42,206.58$   
10,000.00$   10,300.00$   10,609.00$   10,927.27$   11,255.09$   IN MAC 

1,541,465.00$    1,644,342.70$    1,756,051.32$    1,819,012.82$    1,866,266.49$    

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

47,500.00$   48,925.00$   50,392.75$   51,904.53$   53,461.67$   
48,373.00$   50,000.00$   50,000.00$   50,000.00$   50,000.00$   

75,000.00$   77,250.00$   79,567.50$   81,954.53$   84,413.16$   
35,000.00$   36,050.00$   37,131.50$   38,245.45$   39,392.81$   
15,372.00$   15,833.16$   16,308.15$   16,797.40$   17,301.32$   

$ - 60,000.00$   61,800.00$   63,654.00$   65,563.62$   67,530.53$   

-$    281,245.00$    289,858.16$    297,053.90$    304,465.52$    312,099.49$    

7,500.00$   7,500.00$   7,500.00$   7,500.00$   7,500.00$   
-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    Student Fees Not Colected 2023-2024
-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    

-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    250,000 in tenant improvement shown here as
Pre-K Revenue 70,000.00$   72,100.00$   74,263.00$   76,490.89$   78,785.62$   

Year 5 Additional Information

Teacher Appreciation Grant

Other Federal Revenue (ERATE)

Total Federal Revenue:

Other Revenue
Contributions and Donations from Private Sources
Student Fees
Other Fees
Interest Income

Public Charter School Program Grant
Charter Facilities Assistance Program Grant
IDEA- Part B Grant (Special Education)
Title I
Title II (NA transferred to Title I)
Federal Lunch Program
Federal Breakfast Reimbursement

Projected School Annual Operating Budget -- YEARS 1 - 5 (Fiscal Year July 1-June 30)

REVENUES Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4

State Revenue - See Footnotes
Basic Tuition Support (includes complexity)
Special Education Grant 
Honors Diploma Grant
CTE Grant
Charter and Innovation Network School Grant
Formative Assessment Grant

Total State Revenue:

Federal Revenue - See Footnotes

State Matching Funds for School Lunch Program
High Ability (Gifted and Talented) Program
Textbook Reimbursement
Remediation Program Grant

Estimated State reimbursement

Other State Grants (IN MAC)

Other State Grants (Early Intervention)

Other Federal Revenue (SRSA)

Other State Grants (SSSG)
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14,000.00$              14,420.00$              14,852.60$              15,298.18$              15,757.12$              
5,000.00$                 5,150.00$                 5,304.50$                 5,463.64$                 5,627.54$                 

25,000.00$              25,750.00$              26,522.50$              27,318.18$              28,137.72$              Several small and two large annually 
-$                               8,000.00$                 8,240.00$                 8,487.20$                 8,741.82$                 9,004.07$                  

-$                               129,500.00$           133,160.00$           136,929.80$           140,812.69$           144,812.07$           

-$                               1,952,210.00$       2,067,360.86$       2,190,035.03$       2,264,291.03$       2,323,178.05$       

60,000.00$              61,200.00$              62,424.00$              63,672.48$              64,945.93$              
92,000.00$              94,760.00$              97,602.80$              100,530.88$           103,546.81$           Admin Assistant, Transportation Dir, Cafeteria Dir

     

152,000.00$           155,960.00$           160,026.80$           164,203.36$           168,492.74$           

310,000.00$           316,200.00$           322,524.00$           328,974.48$           335,553.97$           Includes Title I Teacher
49,000.00$              49,980.00$              51,479.40$              90,000.00$              91,800.00$              

3,000.00$                 3,090.00$                 3,182.70$                 3,278.18$                 3,376.53$                 Substitutes only included here (IA's in 77)
49,000.00$              49,980.00$              51,479.40$              53,023.78$              54,614.50$              

411,000.00$           419,250.00$           428,665.50$           475,276.44$           485,344.99$           

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
69,000.00$              70,380.00$              72,491.40$              74,666.14$              76,906.13$              includes 3 instructional assistants 
71,000.00$              72,420.00$              74,592.60$              76,830.38$              79,135.29$               
33,000.00$              33,660.00$              34,669.80$              35,709.89$              36,781.19$              and admin. Assistant

     
$ -     

51,000.00$              52,020.00$              53,580.60$              55,188.02$              56,843.66$              Grounds budgeted in facilities as service
53,000.00$              54,060.00$              55,681.80$              57,352.25$              59,072.82$              Budget in Facility Services

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
 

277,000.00$           282,540.00$           291,016.20$           299,746.69$           308,739.09$           

840,000.00$           857,750.00$           879,708.50$           939,226.49$           962,576.82$           

64,783.80$              66,395.27$              67,723.17$              71,979.44$              73,419.03$              
133,000.00$           139,650.00$           146,632.50$           153,964.13$           161,662.33$           Actual used due to some non-prticipation and PT

75,330.00$              77,203.80$              78,747.88$              83,697.02$              85,370.97$              
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Total Other Revenue:

TOTAL REVENUE:

Other Revenue (Fundraisers

Other Compensation (please describe)

School Administration: Office of the Principal

Social Security/Medicare/Unemployment

Instructional Support Staff
Other Support Staff (PRE-K Teacher) (PT Cafeteria)
Nurse
Librarian
Information Technology
Maintenance of Buildings, Grounds, Equipment (including Custodial Staff)
Security Personnel
Athletic Coaches

Total Non-Instructional/Support Staff:

Health Insurance
Retirement Contributions

Other Revenue (Book Fair and Yeabook Sales)
Other Revenue (Before and After School Care)

Subtotal Wages and Salaries:

Payroll Taxes and Benefits - From Tab 3

Total Administrative Staff:

Instructional Staff
Teachers - Regular
Teachers - Special Education 
Substitutes, Assistants, Paraprofessionals, Aides
Art and PE

Total Instructional Staff:

Non-Instructional/Support Staff - See Footnotes
Social Workers, Guidence Counselors, Therapists

Other School Administration
Business Manager/Director of Finance

EXPENSES

Administrative Staff

Other Revenue (Adult Lunch)
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273,113.80$   283,249.07$   293,103.55$   309,640.59$   320,452.33$   

1,113,113.80$    1,140,999.07$    1,172,812.05$    1,248,867.08$    1,283,029.14$    

-$    15,000.00$   40,000.00$   15,000.00$   40,000.00$   15,000.00$   Textbooks and other curr materials in stock

5,000.00$   20,000.00$   20,000.00$   20,000.00$   20,000.00$   Technology in stock
-$    3,000.00$   4,000.00$   4,000.00$   4,000.00$   4,000.00$   NWEA MAP at $15/student/year
-$    7,000.00$   8,000.00$   10,000.00$   10,000.00$   10,000.00$   

5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   
-$    

35,000.00$   25,160.00$   25,900.00$   26,270.00$   26,270.00$   

70,000.00$    102,160.00$    79,900.00$    105,270.00$    80,270.00$    

2,000.00$   5,000.00$   10,000.00$   5,000.00$   10,000.00$   
-$    5,000.00$   5,500.00$   6,000.00$   6,500.00$   7,000.00$   Printing and copying

-$    7,000.00$    10,500.00$    16,000.00$    11,500.00$    17,000.00$    

5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   
-$    1,000.00$   1,000.00$   1,000.00$   1,000.00$   1,000.00$   

-$    6,000.00$    6,000.00$    6,000.00$    6,000.00$    6,000.00$    

-$    7,000.00$   7,210.00$   7,426.30$   7,649.09$   7,878.56$   
-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    Indiana Charters Provides Software and Labor

-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    Indiana Charters (see line 138)
-$    4,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   
-$    54,000.00$   60,000.00$   62,000.00$   64,000.00$   66,000.00$   includes connectivity and managed services
-$    43,164.00$   43,811.46$   44,468.63$   45,135.66$   45,812.70$   Liberty Mutual
-$    2,000.00$   4,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   5,000.00$   

1,000.00$   1,200.00$   1,200.00$   1,200.00$   1,200.00$   
-$    $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - Indiana Charters
-$    5,000.00$   5,000.00$   20,000.00$   7,500.00$   8,000.00$   Adding enrollment and lottery in 26-27
-$    65,000.00$   66,950.00$   68,958.50$   71,027.26$   73,158.07$   
-$    162,000.00$   166,860.00$   171,865.80$   177,021.77$   182,332.43$   

2,000.00$   3,000.00$   3,000.00$   3,000.00$   3,000.00$   
-$    99,996.00$   104,995.00$   104,995.00$   104,995.00$   104,995.00$   All vendor services from IC

-$    445,160.00$    468,026.46$    493,914.23$    491,528.78$    502,376.76$    

Total Payroll Taxes and Benefits:

Total Personnel Expenses:

Other Administrative Expenses (please describe)

Total Administrative Resources:

Other Governing Board Expenses (miscellaneous)

Total Governing Board Expenses:

Purchased or Other Services (do not include staff expenses)
Audit Services
Payroll Services
Financial Accounting

Professional Development
Enrichment Programs (athletics or extra-curricular activities)
Other Instruction Supplies (not including technology)

Total Instructional Supplies and Resources:

Administrative Resources
Administrative Technology - Computers & Software (not SiS)

Governing Board Expenses
Legal Services

Marketing Expenses
Other Services - Indiana Charters

Total Professional Purchased or Other Services:

Printing, Publishing, Duplicating Services
Telecommunication & IT Services
Insurance (non-facility)
Travel
Mail Services
Special Education Administration
Student Information Services or Systems (license)
Food Services
Transportation Services

Instructional Supplies and Resources - See Footnotes
Textbooks
Library/Media Services (Other than Staff)
Technology Supporting Instruction (computers, tablets, etc.)
Student Assessment
Instructional Software
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-$    -$    -$    -$    -$    
-$    5,000.00$   10,000.00$   20,000.00$   20,000.00$   50,000.00$   

Other Principal Payments -$    84,000.00$   84,000.00$   84,000.00$   67,000.00$   -$    FCN loan principal due
Operating Leases -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    
Interest Payments -$    6,000.00$   6,000.00$   6,000.00$   6,000.00$   FCN Interest due
Interest Expense -$    $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Depreciation Expense -$    2,000.00$   2,000.00$   3,000.00$   4,000.00$   4,500.00$   
Insurance (Facility) -$    18,000.00$   18,270.00$   18,544.05$   18,822.21$   19,104.54$   

15,000.00$   15,000.00$   20,000.00$   20,000.00$   50,000.00$   Refresh in Y5
-$    58,000.00$   58,870.00$   59,753.05$   60,649.35$   61,559.09$   
-$    12,000.00$   12,180.00$   12,362.70$   12,548.14$   12,736.36$   IDEM Certified Water operator 
-$    10,000.00$   10,150.00$   10,302.25$   10,456.78$   10,613.64$   
-$    10,000.00$   10,150.00$   10,302.25$   10,456.78$   10,613.64$   Custodial Supply Cost
-$    2,500.00$   2,537.50$   2,575.56$   2,614.20$   2,653.41$   
-$    1,400.00$   1,421.00$   1,442.32$   1,463.95$   1,485.91$   
-$    16,920.00$   14,000.00$   10,000.00$   10,000.00$   10,000.00$   final payments on CSF loan in Yr 2

-$    240,820.00$    244,578.50$    258,282.18$    244,011.41$    233,266.58$    

7,571.52$   8,244.84$   8,940.54$   9,308.50$   9,555.94$   
-$    $ - $ - $ - $ -
-$    600.00$    650.00$    700.00$    700.00$    200.00$    

-$    -$    
$ - 5,000.00$   5,000.00$   10,000.00$   -$    -$    

-$    13,171.52$   13,894.84$   19,640.54$   10,008.50$   9,755.94$   

-$    1,895,265.32$       1,986,158.87$       2,046,549.00$       2,117,185.77$       2,131,698.43$    

-$    56,944.68$   81,201.99$   143,486.02$   147,105.26$   191,479.62$   

Facilities Expenses (do not include staff expenses, e.g. custodian)
Facility Lease/Mortgage Payments (please describe)
Capital Improvements

Purchase of Furniture, Fixtures, & Equipment

Total Facilities Expenses:

Other Expenses - See Footnotes
GC Charter Administrative Fee
Management Fee
Bank Fees
Escrow 
Contingency

Electric & Gas
Water & Sewage
Repair and Maintenance Services (including cost of supplies)
Custodial Services (including cost of supplies)
Waste Disposal
Security Services
Other Facility Expenses (primarily payments to CSF loan)

Total Other Expenses:

TOTAL EXPENSES:

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
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Mays Community Academy 

Budget Narrative
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Budget Narrative 

I. REVENUE	ASSUMPTIONS

A. Per	Pupil	Funding
This	funding	source	may	also	be	termed	"basic	tuition	support"	in	some	references	throughout	this
application.	Revenue	from	this	source	includes	the	foundation	funding	amount	combined	with	the
complexity	formula	amount.		These	funding	amounts	are	calculated	using	HEA	1001	(2023)	as	passed
by	the	Indiana	Legislature	in	April	of	2023.

	Foundation	Funding	

Complexity	Grant		 Complexity	multiplier	is	calculated	at	.250,	the	complexity	multiplier	
for	the	2023-2024	school	year.		

The	complexity	grant	is	determined	by	the	product	of	$3,983	and	the	
"multiplier"	(.3420)	listed	above.	

$	4,020	
x	.250	
$1,005	/	student	

------------------------------------------------------------------------------	

$	6681	
												+$	1005	

Per	Pupil	Funding	 												$7,696	/	student	

The	annual	increase	for	Y2	is	calculated	using	the	State	Budget	numbers.		Y3,	Y4	and	Y5	are	
calculated	at	an	estimate	of	0.03%	increase	per	year.	

B. Special Education Funding (State)
Since	MCA	enrolls	a	high	number	of	students	with	IEP’s	(avg	37%	over	5	years),	the	state	special
education	funding	is	significant.	The	numbers	on	the	proposed	budget	represent	current
enrollment	and	specific	disability	levels	for	students	who	will	remain	enrolled	for	SY	2024-2025

Severe	Disabilities	 $	11,659					x				15	students							$	174,885	
Mild	and	Moderate	Disabilities		 $	2,930							x					25	students.						$				73,250	
Communication	Disorders	 $				551	 	x				30	students							$				16,530	

														$		264,665	

C. Charter and Innovation Network Schools Grant
This	funding	source	was	first	enacted	with	the	2015	budget	bill.	For	the	2024-2025	budget	year,	it
provides	$	1,500	per	student.	Our	budget	assumes	distribution	in	the	same	manner	and	on	the
same	schedule	as	funds	were	distributed	to	operating	schools	during	the	2023-2024	school	year.

$	1,500	
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x				128	
$192,000	

This	distribution	arrives	in	two	installments,	July	and	January.	

E. Part B IDEA
Part	B	of	the	Individuals	with	Disabilities	Education	Act	provides	reimbursement	for	the	"excess
costs"	of	providing	education	to	students	with	special	needs.	The	federal	funding	formula	requires
states	to	consider	multiple	criteria	to	determine	equitable	distribution	for	all	LEAs,	which	includes
charter	schools.	Part	B	IDEA	grants	are	submitted	in	late	summer	with	access	to	reimbursement	in
October.	This	budget	uses	$47,500,	as	a	conservative	estimate	based	on	past	awards.

Estimated	annual	reimbursement				$	 47,500		

F. Title I
MCA	is	recognized	as	full	school	Title	I	program.	Various	intervention	and	support	strategies	are
provided,	including	a	full-time	Title	I	teacher.	The	proposed	budget	includes	revenue	of,	the	current
year’s	budgeted	amount.	This	has	recently	included	transfer	of	Title	II	and	Title	IV	funds.

Estimated	annual	reimbursement				$	 $48,373	

G. Unrecognized Revenue
We expect several grant announcements during FY 2023-2024, and we will be pursuing other revenue
and financial support mechanisms that have been provided by HEA 1001.

II. EXPENSES

A. Staffing Levels
As mentioned in other parts of this application, the board made a deliberate decision to increase
staff levels over the last two school years by utilizing ESSER funding to address the COVID-
related learning setbacks. This staffing increase was intended to support the eventual return to
pre-pandemic staffing levels.

B. Facility Costs
The facility is owned by Northern Rush County Schools / Mays Community Academy. Extensive
remodeling and renovations have taken place over the past 8 years. These were funded through
CFIG and other sources. We do not foresee major facility needs in the near future. MCA is
working to replenish the “rainy day” fund to manage unforeseen circumstances.

C. Transportation
Transportation for students is arranged by an independent contractor called Schwering
Trucking. They own five buses and hire drivers to operate four different routes that offer door-
to-door transportation to and from MCA. The school also owns a bus that is mainly used for
place-based learning field trips. The cost for this service is $160,000 per year, based on prior
experience.
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D. Indiana Charters
Indiana Charters LLC (IC) provides back-office and consultative services to MCA. IC acts as
valued consultants but is not involved in decision-making. The service team consists of eight
members who provide knowledge and support in areas that allow the core office administration
to focus on students, staff, and the community. The partnership between IC and MCA provides a
depth of knowledge that small schools like MCA could not possibly build into their
infrastructure with local hiring.

Indiana Charters has been working with MCA as a vendor since it opened in 2015. The 
contractual relationship involves selecting services from a detailed list in the contract. In 2020, 
after the original COO and business manager resigned, MCA added business and financial 
services to the IC contract. The financial team has been working with the board to strategically 
manage funds, including ESSER and other covid-related funding, as they navigate decreasing 
enrollment in the area. 

Kevin Davis is the founder and owner of Indiana Charters. He served as the founder and CEO of 
the Options Charter Schools from 2002-2012 and was the COO of the Indiana Public Charter 
Schools Association from 2012-2014 before founding IC in 2014.IC’s client list includes both 
full-service and partial support for charter schools in the state.  These include the following: 

• Mays Community Academy (pre-authorization – present)
• Seven Oaks Classical School (pre-authorization – 2020)
• Otwell Miller Academy (pre-authorization – present)
• Circle City Prep (2017-2022)
• Dynamic Minds Academy (pre-authorization – present)
• Lawrence County Independent Schools (pre-authorization – present)
• The Nature School of Central Indiana (pre-authorization – present)
• Springville Community Academy (pre-authorization – present
• Valor Classical Academy (scheduled to open in 2024)

This support staff provides expert back-office services in a cost-efficient manner. 

E. Long Term Debt
In 2022, MCA rolled a local line of credit and a sweep account into a five-year note with FCN
Bank. This debt appears on lines 146 and 148 of the Budget.

F. Charter School Capital
It is likely that Grace College is aware of the Charter School Capital program, which involves
advancing state receivables. MCA entered into an agreement with Charter School Capital
towards the end of 2022, opting to sell receivables one month before scheduled state tuition
support to assist with cash flow.. Although the board does not plan to use this tool to manage
cash flow for the 2024-2025 school year, they are pleased to have it available if necessary.

III. MISCELLANEOUS	NOTES
A. Covid Impacts and Recovery Plan
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Studies consistently show the devasting impact school lockdowns had on student 
achievement (Kuhfeld, Megan, Test score patterns across three COVID-19-impacted ... – 
edworkingpapers 2022). The MCA staff and board recognized the decline of student and 
family engagement as buildings were closed and the educational model was forced into 
change. As students returned to on-campus instruction it became evident that time away 
from our educational model had taken a toll on student achievement and enthusiasm for 
learning. We had to rebuild. 

The Indiana Department of Education was clearly aware of this issue across our state as they 
presented plans to effectively distribute ASP funds to help schools like ours recover.  

“The distribution of ARP ESSER funds is part of the Department’s broader effort to support 
students and districts as they work to reengage students impacted by the pandemic, address 
inequities exacerbated by COVID-19, and build our education system back better than before 
(USDOE U.S. Department of Education approves Indiana's plan … 2021).” 

As a further result, enrollment decreased drastically from 193 (K-8, spring 2020) to 119 (K-8, spring 
2022).  

Although the decreasing enrollment, including a drop to only 13 students in grade 7 and 8, would signal a 
need to drastically reduce staff, the board sought to use ARP funding to focus on recovery and 
engagement, keeping much of the staff in place.  

Long-term budget planning used ESSER II and III funds to lower student / staff ratios and maximize 
recovery efforts with salary and program support spread evenly through the end of the 22-23 school year. 
Though data is not yet available, we believe our efforts will help MCA maintain its “A” school status 
despite these unprecedented obstacles. 

It has been part of our plan to eliminate grades 7 and 8, due to inefficiency in staffing costs, and reduce 
staffing to more traditional levels as we begin the 23-24 school year. We anticipate continuing as a K-6 
school for the 24-25 school year and beyond. 

B. Early Childhood Education
Early childhood education plays a big part in MCA’s efforts to build the community and school
enrollment. MCA has provided a Paths to Quality Level 4-rated, model preschool (Lil' Tigers),
unheard of in our region of the state. L’iL Tigers Pre-School is also accredited by AdvanceEd
(Cognia).  The emphasis on Early Childhood education and funding related to its expansion is a
key to understanding MCA’s current and future budget plans. Of course, a successful Pre-K
program on the MCA site is another key building block to increased enrollment for future years.
Some highlights of this intentional program development  include:

• CCDF Voucher Assistance pays for most families in PRE-K and eligibility guidelines have
recently been expanded.

• As a Paths to Quality Level 4 certified pre-school, all 4 year-olds are eligible for   OMWPK-
funded enrollment.

• Received – 2023 Renewal Certification Paths to Quality Level 4 - $1,000 bonus as an
exemplary program
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• MCA has applied for a child care expansion grant from the Office of Early Childhood Learning
and hopes to receive notice funding in June. Potential funding does not appear as revenue.

• MCA has applied to the FSSA for a grant to support before and after-school programs.
• MCA has applied for a Healthy Meals Incentive Grant for Small Rural Schools (Pre-K – 3, early

childhood nutrition)

Accounting procedures separate Pre-K revenue and expenditures; however, many source funds, including 
the special education 619 (pre-school) allow the sharing of resources. As these funds become available to 
list as revenue, the Pre-K program will help support facility, cafeteria and shared staff salaries and 
benefits for future expansion. Again, no projected revenue that has not awarded is included in these 
numbers. 

C. Community Eligibility Provision
MCA is a Community Eligibility Provision (CEP) school which allows all students to be served free
breakfast, lunch and snacks.  MCA also participates in the Fresh Fruits and Vegetables program (FFVP).
This is the only CEP school in Rush County.
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Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
dba: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

Cli�onl.arsonAllen UP 

CLAconnect.com 

We have audited the financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. dba: Mays 
Community Academy (the School) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our 
report thereon dated March 31, 2023. We have previously communicated to you information about our 
responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
"Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools Performed by Private Examiners" issued by the Indiana 
State Board of Accounts, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our 
audit in our engagement letter dated June 13, 2022. Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant audit findings 

Qualitative aspects of accounting practices 

Accounting policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the School are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. 

No new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed 
during 2022. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial 
statements were: 

• Management's estimate of depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of the buildings,
leasehold improvements, equipment, and furniture. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop depreciation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

• Management's estimate of the functional allocation of expenses shared between programs,
management and general, and fundraising is based on a reasonable and consistent basis using
factors such as direct payroll allocation, square footage, full-time equivalents within each
department, and total direct expenses. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the allocation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

• CLA,global.<:om/discl,imer 
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Financial statement d;sc/osures 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Unconected misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. 

Corrected misstatements 

The attached schedule summarizes all misstatements (material and immaterial) detected by 
management and as a result of audit procedures that were corrected by management. 

Disagreements with management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditors' report. No such disagreements arose during our audit. 

Management representations 

We have requested certaln representations from management that are included in the attached 
management representation letter. 

Management consultations with other independent accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the School's financial statements or a determination of 
the type of auditors' opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the School's auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our engagement. 
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Other information in documents containing audited financial statements 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, on which we 
were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine 
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such 
changes, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial 
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the under1ying accounting 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have 
issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2023. 

The entity's ability to continue as a going concern 

The following conditions and events, when considered in the aggregate, raised substantial doubt about 
the School's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable time: 

• The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the School will
continue as a going concern. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the School saw a
significant decrease in enrollment, resulting in a decrease of state education support of
approximately $180,000. This required additional borrowings against the School's line of
credit of approximately $33,000. Subsequent enrollment for the fall 2022 semester saw
another significant decrease to 119 enrolled students. If this trend continues, these factors
could threaten the School's ability to continue as a going concern.

The School's management is aware of the negative financial results presented in the
previous paragraph and has taken the following measures to improve its finances. The
Board and administration of the School have been deliberate and thoughtful in determining
the optimal learning environment as it navigates through learning losses during COVID-19
lockdowns. Due to the COVID-19 crisis, significant emergency funding was available to the
School, which was utilized during the year ended June 30, 2022. The School has also
worked with its management company to develop a budget for fiscal year 2023 that will

allow the Schoof to meet its current and upcoming obligations and strengthen its net asset
position. Furthermore, the School has also worked towards a 2023-2024 budget and plan
that includes eliminating the inefficient 7th and 8th grades and reducing staffing levels to 
align with the changes in enrollment. The School has also refinanced the outstanding debt
with a financial institution through October 2027 as further described in Note 2 to the
financial statements. To further assist with cash flow, subsequent to year end the School
entered into an agreement with Charter School Capital to purchase certain receivables of
the School.

Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and management's plans for addressing them 
are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements. Management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting, when relevant, is appropriate in the preparation of the financial statements. The outcome of 
these uncertainties could result in the realizability of assets and the settlement of liabilities at amounts 
materially different than their carrying values in the financial statements which were prepared on a 
going concern basis. 
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Because management stated there is substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern and we concluded the disclosures are adequate, we included a separate section in our 
auditors' report reflecting that conclusion. The section states: 

Emphasis of a Matter Regarding Going Concern 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the entity will

continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the School has 
experienced significant decreases in enrollment for the previous School years, which has 
required the School to seek out additional borrowings resulting in current liabilities being greater 
than current assets. The decrease in enrollment significantly reduces revenue for operations 
and repayment on the additional borrowings and, accordingly, the School has stated that 
substantial doubt exists about the School's ability to continue as a going concern. 
Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and management's plans regarding 
these matters also are described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any 
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified 
with respect to this matter. 

Our auditors' opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should 
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare, 
such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and 
management of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. dba: Mays Community Academy, and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
March 31, 2023 
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March 31, 2023 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

9365 Counselors Row, Suite 200 

Indianapolis, IN 46240 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Northern Rush 

County Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community Academy, which comprise the statements of financial position as of 

June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, functional expenses, 

and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to misstatements that are material. 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 

or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 

statements. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of March 31, 2023, the following representations made 

to you during your audits of the financial statements. 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement agreement dated

June 13, 2022, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with

U.S. GAAP.

2. We acknowledge and have fulfilled our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance

of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control

to prevent and detect fraud.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control

over the receipt and recording of contributions.

5. We have identified all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including

the key factors and significant assumptions used in making those estimates, and we believe the estimates

and the significant assumptions used in making those accounting estimates are reasonable.

6. Significant estimates have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the

requirements of U.S. GAAP. Significant estimates are estimates at the financial statement date that could

change materially within the next year.
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7. Related party relationships and transactions, have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in

accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

8. All events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

9. We have not identified or been notified of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements.

10. You have proposed adjusting journal entries that have been posted to the entity's accounts. We have 

reviewed and approved those adjusting journal entries and understand the nature of the changes and 

their impact on the financial statements. We are in agreement with those adjustments and accept

responsibility for them.

11. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or

assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with

U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

12. Material concentrations have been properly disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Concentrations refer

to individual or group concentrations of contributors, granters, clients, customers, suppliers, lenders,

products, services, fund-raising events, sources of labor or materials, licenses or other rights, or operating

areas or markets for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the

next year.

13. Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for sales or other

charges arising on or before the financial statement date and have been reduced to their estimated net 

realizable value.

14. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements

involving restrictions on cash balances, lines of credit, or similar arrangements have been properly

disclosed.

15. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets,

liabilities, or net asset balances.

16. Regarding the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time:

o Our plans to focus on enrollment, development of a budget to meet obligations, subsequent

refinancing of the line of credit balance, and subsequent agreement with a third party for sale of

receivables are intended to mitigate the adverse effects of conditions or events that indicate there

is substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable

period of time.

o We believe the likelihood those plans can be effectively implemented is probable.
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o Note 1 to the financial statements discloses all of the matters of which we are aware that are 
relevant to the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time, 
including principal conditions and events and management's plans.

17. We have reviewed long•lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances have indicated that the carrying amount of 
assets might not be recoverable and, when necessary, have appropriately recorded the adjustment.

18. The Internal Revenue Service has e xamined the entity's federal income tax returns through 2018.
However, the entity's federal income tax returns for 2019, 2020, and 2021 are subject to examination by
the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

19. Designations of net assets, or reclassifications of net assets, have been properly authorized, approved,
and reflected in the financial statements.

20. The cost allocation methods used to allocate the entity's expenses to the appropriate functional
classification as program services, management and general, and fundraising are properly supported by
the entity's books and records. The cost allocation methods used are rational, systematic, and consistently
applied. The bases used for allocation offunctional expenses are reasonable.

Information Provided 

1. We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements such as records (including information obtained from

within and outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Complete minutes of the meetings of the governing board and related committees, or summaries
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

2. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

3. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

4. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

5. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:
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a. Management;

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

6. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity's financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.

7. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements, or waste or abuse whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.

8. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments, or unasserted claims
or assessments, that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance

with U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

9. There are no other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or

disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

10. We have disclosed to you the identity of all the entity's related parties and all the related-party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including any side agreements.

11. The entity has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets,
nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as made known to you and disclosed in the financial
statements.

12. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, including compliance provisions of the Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines

Manual for Indiana Charter Schools issued by the Indiana State Board of Accounts, applicable to Mays
Community Academy; and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

13. We have complied with all restrictions on resources (including donor restrictions) and all aspects of 
contractual and grant agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the
event of noncompliance. This includes complying with donor requirements to maintain a specific asset
composition necessary to satisfy their restrictions.

14. Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community Academy is an exempt organization under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would
jeopardize the entity's tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business income or 

excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you. All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.

1S. We are responsible for determining whether we have received, expended, or otherwise been the 
beneficiary of any federal awards during the period of this audit. No federal award, received directly from 
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federal agencies or indirectly as a su brecipient, was expended in an amount that cumulatively totals from 
all sources $750,000 or more. For this representation, "award" means financial assistance and federal 
cost-reimbursement contracts that non-federal entities receive directly from federal awarding agencies 
or indirectly from pass-through entities. It does not include procurement contracts, user grants, or 
contracts used to buy goods or services from vendors. 

16. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the statement of financial position and statement of
activity and changes in net assets (the supplementary information) in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and we
believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, Is fairly presented in accordance
with U.S. GAAP. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information have
not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions
or interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. If
the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the
audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no
later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the auditors' report thereon.

17. We understand that you prepared the trial balance for use during the audit and that your preparation of
the trial balance was limited to formatting information into a working trial balance based on
management's chart of accounts.

18. As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements, related notes, and supplementary
information. We have designated an individual who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or
experience to understand and oversee your services; have made all management judgments and
decisions; and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have evaluated the adequacy and
results of the service. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial
statements, related notes, and supplementary information. We have also ensured that the entity's data
and records are complete and received sufficient information to oversee the service.

19. We understand that as part of your audit, you prepared the adjusting journal entries necessary and
acknowledge that we have reviewed and approved those entries and accepted responsibility for them.
We have also ensured that the entity's data and records are complete and received sufficient information
to oversee the service.

20. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

21. We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our
planned corrective actions, for the report.

� DocuSigned by: 

Signature: --�1,11,.\,1A,t,,�si-G""'v4sh-b..,l'-V'----------------Title: _P_r_ e_s_i_d_en_t ____ _
39E4E2815F80,.2� 

Title: _B_u_ s_i_n_e _s_s_c_o_ n_s_u_l_t_a_nt_
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

Report on the Audit Of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, 
Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy, which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fair1y, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy as 
of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for 
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy and to 
meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of a Matter Regarding Going Concern 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the entity will continue as a 
going ooncern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the School has experienced 
significant decreases in enrollment for the previous School years, which has required the School to 
seek out additional borrowings resulting in current liabilities being greater than current assets. The 
decrease in enrollment significantly reduces revenue for operations and repayment on the additional 
borrowings and, accordingly, the School has stated that substantial doubt exists about the School's 
ability to continue as a going concern. Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and 
management's plans regarding these matters also are described in Note 1. The financfal statements do 
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

CLAg!obal.com/disdaimer 
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Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northern Rush County 
Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy's ability to continue as a going concern for one 
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in aggregate, they would 
influence the judgement made by reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays
Community Academy's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba:
Mays Community Academy's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

(2)
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Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

Report on Supplementary Information 

The supplementary information is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
March 31, 2023 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash $ 147,034 
Grants Receivable 242,742 

Total Current Assets 389,776 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Land 88,400 
Buildings and Improvements 783,331 
Furniture and Equipment 296,829 
Software and Textbooks 90,082 
Vehicles 5,000 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (405

1192) 
Property and Equipment, Net 858,450 

OTHER ASSETS 

Security Deposit 3,900 

Total Assets $ 1,252,126 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Lines of Credit $ 
Current Portion of Notes Payable 210,565 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 136,402 

Total Current Liabilities 346,967 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 467,810 

Total Liabilities 814,777 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 437,349 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,252,126 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(4) 

2021 

$ 46,413 
130

!
046 

176,459 

88,400 
621,588 
279,804 

90,082 
5,000 

{349,013) 
735,861 

3,900 

$ 916,220 

$ 386,653 
78,082 

120,716 
585,451 

266,464 

851,915 

64
!
305 

$ 916,220 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 
REVENUE ANO SUPPORT 

State Education Support $ 1,342,220 
Grant Revenue 1,443,909 
Student Fees 73,123 
Contributions 2,087 
Fundraising and Other Income 91,626 
Gain on Extinguishment of Payroll Protection Program Loan 

Total Revenue and Support 2,952,965 

EXPENSES 

Program Services 1,944,476 
Management and General 635,445 

Total Expenses 2,579,921 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 373,044 

Net Assets • Beginning of Year 64,305 

NET ASSETS • ENO OF YEAR $ 437,349 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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2021 

$ 1,522,803 
842,436 

63,209 
7,336 

61,124 
243

1
954 

2,740,862 

2,001,569 
686,403 

2,687,972 

52,890 

11,415 

§ 64,305
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Salaries al'\d Wages 
Employse Benefits 
Slaff Development 
Professional Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Authorizer Oversight Fees 
Food Costs 
Transportation 
I nfa rm atlon Technology 
Advertisirig 
Classroom, Kitchen, and Office Supplies 
Occupancy 
Depreciation 
Interest 
Insurance 
other 

Tota! Functional Expenses 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 
Program Management Program 
Services and General Total Services 

$ 942,578 $ 290,833 $ 1,233,411 $ 939,494 
268,056 104,205 372,261 284,327 

8,011 8,011 5,544 
220,129 144,319 364,448 86,943 

15,545 15,545 
35,608 35,608 

68,164 68,164 68,637 
186,94ti 466 189,412 207,397 
46,178 46,178 79,474 

3,446 3,448 
87,376 4,763 92,139 208,288 
55,260 55,260 53,133 
56,179 56,179 58,328 

26,321 26,321 
2,500 2,500 2,500 
1099 9 937 11 036 7506 

i 1,944,476 i 635,445 !I! 2,579,921 i 2,001,569 

See accvmpanying Notes to Financie/ Slaf9m8i!ls. 

{6) 

2021 
Management 
and General Tolal 

$ 305,275 $ 1,244,769 
90,739 375,066 

5,544 
185,085 272,028 

13,711 13,711 
39,850 39,850 

66,637 
1,281 208,678 

79,474 
370 370 

12,519 220,805 
53,133 
58,328 

25,507 25,507 
2,500 

12,066 19,572 

!I! 666,403 I 2,687,972 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets $ 373,044 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 56,179 
Gain on Extinguishment of Payroll Protection Program Loan 
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities: 

Grants Receivable (112,696) 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 15

1
686 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 332,213 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property and Equipment (178,768) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Lines of Credit, Net 23,346 
Repayment of Notes Payable (76,170) 

N et Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (52,824) 

NET CHANGE IN CASH 100,821 

Cash - Beginning of Year 46,413 

CASH -END OF YEAR $ 147.034 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash Paid for Interest $ 26,321 

Refinance of Line of Credit to Note Payable $ 409
1
999 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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2021 

$ 52,890 

58,328 
(243,954) 

(18,721) 
{244) 

(151,701) 

(15,713) 

229,349 
(74,033l 
155,316 

(12,098) 

58,511 

$ 46,413 

$ 25,507 

$ 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 

Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy (the School) 
is a public benefit nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of the state of Indiana. 
The School is sponsored by Ball State University and operates a public charter school 
established under Indiana Code 20-24. The School served approximately 150 and 184 
students during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, in grades 
kindergarten through eight. 

Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools Act. 
Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the funding received 
by other public schools in the same geographic area. Funding from the state of Indiana is 
based on enrollment and paid in monthly installments in July through June coinciding with 
the academic School year. Revenue is recognized in the year in which the educational 
services are rendered. 

A portion of the School's revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants. Therefore, 
the School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amounts of costs and expenses at 
the time they are incurred. A mounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are 
reported as deferred revenues in the statement of financial position. As of June 30, 2022 
and 2021, the School does not have any conditional grants that have not been recognized 
as revenue in the statement of activities because conditions have not been met. 

Revenue from student fees, fundraising, and other income is recognized when the control of 
the promised good or service is transferred to the student, in an amount that reflects the 
consideration expected to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Amounts 
received prior to the service is performed is reported as deferred revenue in the statement of 
financial position. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School did not have any such deferred 
revenue. 

(8)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Contributions and Grants 

The School receives income from contributions and grants that support certain school 
activities. Such revenue received and unconditional promises to give are measured at their 
fair value and are reported as an increase in net assets. The School reports gifts of cash 
and other assets and grants as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations 
that limit the use of the donated assets, or if they are designated as support for future 
periods. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or 
purposes restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to 
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and change 
in net assets as net assets released from restriction. The School did not have any net assets 
with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash consists of cash held in bank accounts and cash equivalents consists of short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. There were no cash 
equivalents at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable relate primarily to activities funded under federal programs. The School 
believes that it is operating in compliance with regulatory requirements and as such no 
allowance for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. 

Taxes on Income 

Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated has received a determination from the U.S. 
Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code as a tax-exempt organization; however, the School would be 
subject to tax on income unrelated to its tax-exempt purpose. For the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, no accounting for federal and state income taxes was required to be 
included in the accompanying financial statements. 

Professional accounting standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it is 
more likely than not the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax 
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax 
liability that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not 
meeting the more-likely-than-not test, no tax liability is recorded. The School has examined 
this issue and has determined that there are no material contingent tax liabilities or 
questionable tax positions. Tax years ending after 2017 are open to audit for both federal 
and state purposes. 

(9)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 ANO 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Property and Equipment 

Purchases of assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful fives 
are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and repairs, 
minor replacement costs, and equipment purchases with a unit cost of Jess than $500 are 
charged to expense as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the 
straight- line method. The estimated useful lives generally are as follows: 

Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture and Equipment 
Software and Textbooks 
Vehicles 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

7 to 40 Years 
5 to 10 Years 

3 to 5 Years 
10 Years 

On an ongoing basis, the School reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be overstated. The School 
recognizes impairment losses if the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated are 
less than the carrying value of the related asset. If impaired, the assets are adjusted to fair 
value based on the undiscounted cash flows. 

Going Concern Considerations 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the School will 
continue as a going concern. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the School saw a 
significant decrease in enrollment, resulting in a decrease of state education support of 
approximately $180,000. This required additional borrowings against the School's line of 
credit of approximately $33,000. Subsequent enrollment for the fall 2022 semester saw 
another significant decrease to 119 enrolled students. If this trend continues, these factors 
could threaten the School's ability to continue as a going concern. 

The School's management is aware of the negative financial results presented in the 
previous paragraph and has taken the following measures to improve its finances. The 
Board and administration of the School have been deliberate and thoughtful in determining 
the optimal learning environment as it navigates through learning losses during COVID-19 
lockdowns. Due to the COVID-19 crisis, significant emergency funding was available to the 
School, which was utilized during the year ended June 30, 2022. The School has also 
worked with its management company to develop a budget for fiscal year 2023 that will 
allow the School to meet its current and upcoming obligations and strengthen its net asset 
position. Furthermore, the School has also worked towards a 2023-2024 budget and plan 
that includes eliminating the inefficient 7th and 8th grades and reducing staffing levels to 
align with the changes in enrollment. The School has also refinanced the outstanding debt 
with a financial institution through October 2027 as further described in Note 2 to the 
financial statements. To further assist with cash flow, subsequent to year end the School 
entered into an agreement with Charter School Capital to purchase certain receivables of 
the School. 

(10)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsequent Events 

The School evaluated subsequent events through March 31, 2023, the date these financial 
statements were available to be issued. Events occurring through that date have been 
evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related disclosures 
would be required. 

NOTE 2 NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes payable were comprised of the following at June 30: 

Descriplion 2022 2021 

Note payable to FCN Bank with monthly installments 
of $3,298 including interest at 6.25% annum, 
maturing in July 2024. In October 2022, this was $ $ 110,796 
refinanced into the note below. 

Note payable {resulting from refinance of previous loan 
and lines of credit in October 2022) to FCN Bank with 
monthly installments of $7,057 including interest at 6.5% 
annum, maturing in October 2027. 487,125 

Note payable to Indiana Slate Board of Education. 
payable $21,250 semi-annually (January 1 and July 1) 
plus interest at 1.00% per annum, maturing in July 2026. 191

1
250 233i?50 

Total 678,375 344,546 

Less: Current Portion (210,565} (78,082) 

Long� Term Portion i 467
1
810 $ 266,464 

Principal maturities of notes payable are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $ 210,565 
2024 108,382 
2025 112,795 
2026 138,752 
2027 80,025 

Thereafter 27
1
856 

Total $ 678,375 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 ANO 2021 

NOTE 3 DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT 

On April 15, 2020, the School received proceeds in the amount of $243,954 to fund payroll, 
rent, and utilities through the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The PPP Loan 
was formally forgiven by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) on April 5, 2021. 
Accordingly, the School recognized a gain on the extinguishment of debt of $243,954 during 
the year ended June 30, 2021. This amount is included in the accompanying statement of 
activities. 

The SBA may review funding eligibility and usage of funds in compliance with the program 
based on dollar thresholds and other factors. The amount of liability, if any, from potential 
noncompliance cannot be determined with certainty; however, management is of the opinion 
that any review will not have a material adverse impact on the School's financial position. 

NOTE 4 LINES OF CREDIT 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School entered into two line of credit 
arrangements with FCN Bank. The first line of credit has a $300,000 borrowing capacity and 
incurred interest at 6.5% per annum, maturing October 2019. This was extended to 
October 2022 with an interest rate of 5%. The second line of credit has a $120,000 
borrowing capacity and incurred interest at 6.5% per annum, maturing August 2019. This 
was extended to October 2022 with an interest rate of 4.5%. The balance of the lines of 
credit as of June 30, 2021 was $386,653, respectively. Subsequent to year-end, the two 
lines of credit were refinanced with the outstanding note payable into one note payable as 
noted in Note 2. 

NOTE 5 RETIREMENT PLANS 

The School provides retirement benefits covering substantially all full-time employees. 
Retirement benefits are provided by the Indiana State Teachers' Retirement Fund (TRF) 
and the Indiana Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF), both of which are cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plans governed by the state of Indiana and 
administered by the Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS) Board. 

Contribution requirements of plan members are determined annually by the INPRS Board. 
For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School contributed 5.5% of compensation 
for eligible teaching personnel to TRF and 11.2% for other employees to PERF. Should the 
School elect to withdraw from TRF or PERF, it could be subject to a withdrawal fee. The 
School's contributions represent an insignificant percentage of the total contributions 
received by TRF and PERF. As of June 30, 2021 (the latest year reported), TRF and PERF 
were approximately 95% and 83% funded, respectively. The School's total retirement 
expense was $52,348 and $43,396 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

(12)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATE D 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 6 COMMITMENTS 

The School operates under a charter granted by Ball State University. As the sponsoring 
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under this 
charter, the School has agreed to pay to Ball State University an annual administrative fee 
equal to 3% of state tuition support. Payments under this charter agreement were $35,608 
and $39,850 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The charter remains 
in effect until June 30, 2023 and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. Subsequent to 
year-end, the School withdrew the charter renewal application with Ball State University thus 
the current charter will end June 30, 2023 unless the School applies for charter authorization 
from a different authorizer. 

The School contracted with Indiana Charters LLC, a for-profit organization incorporated in 
the state of Indiana, to perform data management, financial, administrative, and general 
operational support services. Expenses under this contract were $106,332 and $81,825 for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

NOTE 7 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The School provides educational instruction services to families residing in Rush and 
surrounding counties in Indiana and is subject to the risks of economic and competitive 
forces at work within this geographic area. 

The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the state of Indiana and grants 
awarded under federal programs. Any changes in state or federal legislation could 
significantly impact the School. Additionally, the School is subject to monitoring and audit by 
state and federal agencies. Those examinations may result in additional liability to be 
imposed on the School. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of receivables from the state of Indiana. At June 30, 2021, substantially all 
of the receivable balance was due from the state of Indiana. In addition, bank deposits are 
maintained primarily at FCN Bank, and are insured up to the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) limit. 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is 
having significant effects on global markets. supply chains, businesses, and communities. 
Specific to the School, COVID•19 has impacted various parts of its operations and financial 
results, including an increase in nutrition and other grant funding. Management believes the 
School is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the full impact 
of COVID· 19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as these events are ongoing 
and are still developing. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 301 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 8 LIQUIDITY 

Under ASU 2016-14, the School is required to disclose the assets it has available at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 to meet its cash needs for general expenditures within one year of 
the date of the statement of financial position. Financial assets for the School include cash 
and grants receivable which total $386,180 and $176,459 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

From time to time, the School receives donor-restricted contributions. Because donor 
restrictions require resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the 
School must maintain sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, 
financial assets may not be available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the 
School's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available 
as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. In addition, the 
School has a $10,001 and $33,347 line of credit available as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

NOTE 9 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE REPORTING 

The costs of providing the educational activities have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statements of activities and change in net assets. Management of the School 
has categorized expenses as program services or management and general according to 
the underlying nature of the expense. As such, no allocation of specific transactions 
between these categories is required. 

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The School contracts with a transportation company that is owned by the husband of the 
Board Treasurer. The School uses the transportation company for busing services and also 
employs two relatives of the Board Treasurer. Expenses under this relationship during the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $186,244 and $192,592, respectively, for 
transportation and $-0- and $10,769, respectively, for labor. 

(14)

127



NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
OTHER REPORT 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

The reports presented herein were prepared in addition to another official report prepared for the 
School as listed below: 

Supplemental Audit Report of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the Indiana State 
Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools Performed by Private 
Examiners pertaining to matters addressed in its Accounting and Unifonn Compliance Guidelines 
Manual for Indiana Charter Schools. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

Mays 
Mays Community 

Community Academy 
Academl Pre-K Eliminations 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash $ (39,133) $ 186,167 $ 

Grants Receivable 242,742 
Total Current Assets 203,609 186,167 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

l.Bnd 88,400 
Buildings and Improvements 783,331 
Furniture and Equipment 296,829 
Software and Textbooks 90,082 
Vehicles 5,000 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation !405,192l

Property and Equipment, Net 858,450 

OTHER ASSETS 

Security Deposit 3,900 

Total Assets $ 1,065,959 $ 186,167 $ 

LIABILITIES AHO NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Lines of Credit $ $ $ 
Current Portion of Notes Payable 210,565 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 118

1
280 18,122 

Total Cunrent Liabilities 328,845 16,122 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable, Net of Cunrent Portion 467,810 

Total Liabilities 796,655 18,122 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRJCTIONS 

Undesignated 269,304 168
1
045 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets !I! 1
1
065

1
959 $ 186,167 $ 

(16) 

Total 

$ 147,034 
242,742 
389,776 

88,400 
783,331 
296,829 

90,082 
5,000 

(405,192} 
858,450 

3,900 

$ 1,252,126 

$ 
210,565 
136,402 
346,967 

467,810 

814,777 

437
1
349 

$ 1,252,126 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

Mays 
Mays Community 

Community Academy 
Academl Pre-K 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State Education Support $ 1,342,220 $ 

Grant Revenue 1,257,742 186,167 
Student Fees 12,910 60,213 
Contributions 2,087 
Fundraising and Other Income 91,626 

Total Revenue and Support 2,706,585 246,380 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 1,883,133 61,343 
Management and General 635,445 

Total Expenses 2,518,578 61,343 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 188,007 185,037 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 81,297 (16,992) 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 269,304 i 168,045 

(17) 

Total 

$ 1,342,220 
1,443,909 

73,123 
2,087 

91,626 
2,952,965 

1,944,476 
635

1
445 

2,579,921 

373,044 

64 305 

;ii 437,349 
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RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 
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tl 
Clifton La rsonA lien LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
dba: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. dba: Mays Community 
Academy, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated March 
31, 2023. As part of our audit, we tested the School's compliance with provisions of the Accounting and 
Unifonn Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools issued by the Indiana State Board 
of Accounts and related provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements. Reported in 
the Audit Results and Comments are matters where we believe the School was not in compliance with 
those provisions. 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
March 31, 2023 

CLAglgbal,,;om/disclaimer 
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PAYROLL TESTING 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 
AUDIT RESULTS AND COMMENTS 

JULY 1, 2021 TO JUNE 30, 2022 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, during our testing of payroll disbursements we noted that of our 
sample of twenty-five (25) payments made to individuals that none of the individuals had signed and 
approved contracts for employment. 

The charter school shall maintain adequate supporting documentation for payroll to ensure that 
payments are made only for services rendered. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines 
Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 8) 

All compensation and benefits paid to employees must be included in the labor contract or salary 
schedule unless otherwise authorized by statute. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines 
Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 10) 

AVERAGE DAILY MEMBERSHIP (ADM) TESTING- REPORTING CERTIFICATIONS 
The Organizer is responsible for reporting ADM to the Indiana Department of Education (IDOE). The 
ADM Summary Report shall provide a written certification of ADM to properly document responsibility. 
During the testing of the ADM certifications, we were unable to determine complete certification and 
timely submission as the membership count date ADM report provided did not include certifications and 
submission data for the Fall 2021 count date. 

The ADM Summary Report must be signed by the SuperintendenVPrincipal/Director of Schools and the 
Trustee/Corporate Treasurer and be uploaded to IDOE for each reporting period in the fiscal year. 
Supporting documentation of enrollment and attendance/engagement information by grade and school 
must be maintained for audit. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana 
Charter Schools, Part 9). 

(3)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 

EXIT CONFERENCE 
JULY 1, 2021 TO JUNE 30, 2022 

The contents of this report were discussed with Nansi Custer, Board President, and Kevin Davis, 
Indiana Charters on March 31, 2023. The Official Response has been made a part of this report and 
may be found on page 5. 

(4)
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March 29, 2023 

Northern Rush County Schools Inc. 
929 E. South Smet 
Mays lndinna 46 t :'i :'i 

AVERAGE DAILY MEMBERSHIP (ADM) TESTING - CERTIFICATIONS 

The conversion to Data Exchange reporting of all school data has been in a transition. 
Our data vendor submitted a letter/ ticket to the Indiana Department of Education (call 
number 3437735 on August 1 stating that signed certifications were not available for 
download as promised. A response was issued: 

"Kevin, 

Others have begun asking about retrieving historical data. IDOE development 

team are aware of this request and are working on a solution. Please continue 

to watch the Announcement in Moodie for updates to this request." 

The ticket was subsequently closed with a response to our management organization 

or other schools that experienced the same problem. The unsigned copy was 

presented to the audit team. 

PAYROLL TESTING 

The board is aware of this deficiency which was the result of a leadership transition. 

The board will directly monitor the correct implementation in the future. The board 

has implemented a new policy in reference to employee contract records. The 

employment contracts will be saved electronically as well as hard copy in a secured 

location so this situation will never happen again. 
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Nansi Custer 

N RCS Board President 
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@Global 
INOEPENDENl 

NFlWOR� MEMBfn 

CLA (CliftonlarsonAllen LLP) is a network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclalmer. 
Investment advisory services are offered through C\iftonlarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an 
SEC-registered investment advisor. 
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STATE OF INDIANA 
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY F-MPLOYER 

Charter School Board 
Northern Rush County SchOols, Inc. 
d/b/a Mays Community Academy 
929 East South Street 
Mays, IN 46155 

858902 

ST/\T!! BOAlm OF ACCOUNTS 

302 \VEST WASIJINGTON S!REl-:T 
ROOM E418 

INDIAN,\1'O1.IS, IN[)[/\ I\A 46204-2769 

Telephone: (317) 232-2513 
l'llX: (317) 232-4711 

Web Site: www.in.gov/shoa 

March 24, 2022 

We have reviewed the audit report of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community 
Academy which was opined upon by CliftonlarsonAllen LLP, Independent Public Accountants, for the 
period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. Per the Independent Auditors' Report the financial statements 
included in the report present fairly the financial condition of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a 
Mays Community Academy as of June 30, 2021 and the results of its operations for the period then ended, 
on the basis of accounting described in the report. 

In our opinion, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP prepared tne audit report in accordance with guidelines 
established by the State Board of Accounts. 

In addition to the report presented herein, a Supplemental Audit Report for Northern Rush County 
Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community Academy, was prepared in accordance with the guidelines established 
by the State Board of Accounts. 

The report is filed with this letter in our office as a matter of public record. 

��J};d, 
Tammy R. White, CPA 
Deputy State Examiner 

140



NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

141



NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OTHER REPORT 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

1 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

14 

15 

16 

142



CliftonlarsonAllen LlP 

ClAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, 
Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy, which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error 

.Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Cl.f\, i, an independfmt member of NP>.i� lnternation.il. a lrading, global nHworkof ind,•pend�nt 

;:iccoui,ting and consulting firms. See nexta.com/member-tinn-di5claimer for detail5. 
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Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy as 
of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for 
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

The supplementary information is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
January 7, 2022 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash $ 46,413 
Grants Receivable 130,046 

Total Current Assets 176,459 

PROPERTY ANO EQUIPMENT 

Land 88,400 
Buildings and Improvements 621,588 
Furniture and Equipment 279,804 
Software and Textbooks 90,082 
Vehicles 5,000 
Less: Acx:umulated Depreciation (349,013) 

Property and Equipment, Net 735,861 

OTHER ASSETS 

Security Deposit 3,900 

Total Assets $ 916,220 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Lines of Credit $ 386,653 
Current Portion of Notes Payable 78,082 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 120,716 

Total Current Liabilities 585,451 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 266,464 
Loan Payable Under Paycheck Protection Program 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 266,464 

Total Liabilities 851,915 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 64 305 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 916,220 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(3) 

2020 

$ 58,511 
111,325 
169,836 

88,400 
605,875 
279,804 

90,082 
5,000 

(290,685) 
778,476 

3,900 

$ 952,212 

$ 157,305 
78,082 

120,960 
356,347 

340,496 
243 954 
584,450 

940,797 

11 415 

} 952,212 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

State Education Support $ 1,522,803 
Grant Revenue 842,436 

Student Fees 63,209 
Contributions 7,336 
Fundraising and Other Income 61,124 

Gain on Extinguishment of Payroll Protection Program Loan 243,954 
Total Revenue and Support 2,740,862 

EXPENSES 

Program Services 2,001,569 
Management and General 686,403 

Total Expenses 2,687,972 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 52,890 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 11,415 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 64,305 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(4) 

2020 

$ 1,721,205 
763,364 

43,512 
3,353 

58,680 

2,590,114 

1,936,664 
777,955 

2,714,619 

(124,505) 

135,920 

$ 11,415 
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Salaries and Wages 
Employee Benefits 
Staff Development 
Professional Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Authorizer Oversight Fees 
Food Costs 
Transportation 
Information Technology 
Advertising 
Classroom, Kitchen, and Office Supplies 
Occupancy 
Depreciation 
Interest 
Insurance 
Other 

Total Functional Expenses 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 
Program Management Program 
Services and General Total Services 

$ 939,494 $ 305,275 $ 1,244,769 $ 979,822 
284,327 90,739 375,066 292,459 

5,544 5,544 37,125 
86,943 185,085 272,028 67,334 

13,711 13,711 
39,850 39,850 

68,637 68,637 81,951 
207,397 1,281 208,678 232,145 

79,474 79,474 23,211 
370 370 

208,286 12,519 220,805 83,249 
53,133 53,133 54,219 
58,328 58,328 74,269 

25,507 25,507 
2,500 2,500 2,500 
7,506 12,066 19,572 8,380 

$ 2
1
001,569 $ 686,403 � 2

1
687,972 $ 1

1
936,664 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(5) 

2020 
Management 
and General Total 

$ 367,325 $ 1,347,147 
134,254 426,713 

37,125 
157,447 224,781 

39,241 39,241 
37,111 37, 111 

81,951 
215 232,360 

23,211 
44 44 

9,484 92,733 
54,219 
74,269 

28,254 28,254 
2,500 

4,580 12,960 

$ 777
1
955 $ 2,714,619 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2021 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets $ 52,890 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 58,328 
Gain on Extinguishment of Payroll Protection Program Loan (243,954) 
Changes in Operating Assets and liabilities: 

Grants Receivable (18,721) 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses {244) 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (151,701) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property and Equipment (15,713) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from lines of Credit, Net 229,349 
Proceeds from Notes Payable 
Repayment of Notes Payable (74,033) 
Proceeds from Loan Payable Under Paycheck Protection Program 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 155 316 

NET CHANGE IN CASH (12,098) 

Cash - Beginning of Year 58 511 

CASH - ENO OF YEAR $ 46,413 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid for Interest $ 25,507 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(6) 

2020 

$ (124,505) 

74,269 

(17,040) 
{9

1
270} 

{76,546) 

(109,735) 

37,105 
702,974 

(885,683) 
243 954 

98,350 

(87,931) 

146 442 

$ 58,511 

$ 28,254 
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NORTHERN R USH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 

Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy (the School) 
is a public benefit nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of the state of Indiana. 
The School is sponsored by Ball State University and operates a public charter school 
established under Indiana Code 20-24. The School served approximately 184 and 220 
students during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, in grades 
kindergarten through eight. 

Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools Act. 
Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the funding received 
by other public schools in the same geographic area. Funding from the state of Indiana is 
based on enrollment and paid in monthly installments in July through June coinciding with 
the academic School year. Revenue is recognized in the year in which the educational 
services are rendered. 

A portion of the School's revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants. Therefore, 
the School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amounts of costs and expenses at 
the time they are incurred. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are 
reported as deferred revenues in the statement of financial position. As of June 30, 2021 
and 2020, the School does not have any conditional grants that have not been recognized 
as revenue in the statement of activities because conditions have not been met. 

Revenue from student fees, fundraising, and other income is recognized when the control of 
the promised good or service is transferred to the student, in an amount that reflects the 
consideration expected to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Amounts 
received prior to the service is performed is reported as deferred revenue in the statement of 
financial position. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the School did not have any such deferred 
revenue. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Contributions and Grants 

The School receives income from contributions and grants that support certain school 
activities. Such revenue received and unconditional promises to give are measured at their 
fair value and are reported as an increase in net assets. The School reports gifts of cash 
and other assets and grants as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations 
that limit the use of the donated assets, or if they are designated as support for future 
periods. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or 
purposes restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to 
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and change 
in net assets as net assets released from restriction. The School did not have any net assets 
with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash consists of cash held in bank accounts and cash equivalents consists of short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. There were no cash 
equivalents at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable relate primarily to activities funded under federal programs. The School 
believes that it is operating in compliance with regulatory requirements and as such no 
allowance for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. 

Taxes on Income 

Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated has received a determination from the U.S. 
Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501 (c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code as a tax-exempt organization; however, the School would be 
subject to tax on income unrelated to its tax-exempt purpose. For the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020, no accounting for federal and state income taxes was required to be 
included in the accompanying financial statements. 

Professional accounting standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it is 
more likely than not the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax 
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax 
liability that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not 
meeting the more-likely-than-not test, no tax liability is recorded. The School has examined 
this issue and has determined that there are no material contingent tax liabilities or 
questionable tax positions. Tax years ending after 2016 are open to audit for both federal 
and state purposes. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 ANO 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Property and Equipment 

Purchases of assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful lives 
are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and repairs, 
minor replacement costs, and equipment purchases with a unit cost of less than $500 are 
charged to expense as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the 
straight- line method. The estimated useful lives generally are as follows: 

Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture and Equipment 
Software and Textbooks 
Vehicles 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

7 to 40 Years 
5 to 10 Years 

3 to 5 Years 
10 Years 

On an ongoing basis, the School reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be overstated. The School 
recognizes impairment losses if the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated are 
less than the carrying value of the related asset. If impaired, the assets are adjusted to fair 
value based on the undiscounted cash flows. 

Going Concern Considerations 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the School will 
continue as a going concern. As of June 30, 2021, the School's current liabilities are greater 
than current assets by approximately $409,000. A majority of the balance in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses represents current payroll and future payroll to fulfill School 
year teaching contracts, totaling approximately $102,000. The remainder of current liabilities 
is related to the line of credit which currently has a maturity date of October 2022. The 
School also had a negative cash flow from operating activities for both fiscal year 2020 and 
2021. If this trend continues, these factors could threaten the School's ability to continue as 
a going concern. 

The School's management is aware of the negative financial results presented in the 
previous paragraph and has taken the following measures to improve its finances. The 
School has focused its efforts on enrollment. The School has also worked with its 
management company to develop a budget for fiscal year 2022 that will allow the School to 
meet its current and upcoming obligations and strengthen its net asset position. This budget 
includes revenue from additional funding sources as a result of the School's focused efforts 
on identifying and securing additional grant opportunities. 

Subsequent Events 

The School evaluated subsequent events through January 7, 2022, the date these financial 
statements were available to be issued. Events occurring through that date have been 
evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related disclosures 
would be required. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsequent Events (Continued} 
Subsequent to year-end, the School was awarded approximately $66,000 in Coronavirus 
Aid, Relieve and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding. 

NOTE 2 NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes payable were comprised of the following at June 30: 

Description 2021 2020 

Note payable to FCN Bank with monthly installments 
of $3,298 including interest at 6.25% annum, 
maturing in July 2024. $ 110,796 $ 142,328 

Note payable to Indiana State Board of Education, 
payable $21,250 semi-annually (January 1 and July 1) 
plus interest at 1.00% per annum, maturing in July 2026. 233,750 276,250 

Total 344,546 418,578 

Less: Current Portion (78,082) (78,082) 

Long-Term Portion I 266,464 $ 340,496 

Principal maturities of notes payable are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2022 $ 78,082 
2023 78,082 
2024 78,082 
2025 46,550 
2026 63,750 
Total $ 344,546 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 A ND 2020 

NOTE 3 DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT 

On April 15, 2020, the School received proc eeds in the amount of $243,954 to fund payroll, 
rent, and utilities through the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The PPP Loan 
was formally forgiven by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) on April 5, 2021. 
Accordingly, the School recognized a gain on the extinguishment of debt of $243,954 during 
the year ended June 30, 2021. This amount is included in the accompanying statement of 
activities. 

The SBA may review funding eligibility and usage of funds in compliance with the program 
based on dollar thresholds and other factors. The amount of liability, if any, from potential 
noncompliance cannot be determined with certainty; however, management is of the opinion 
that any review will not have a material adverse impact on the School's financial position. 

NOTE 4 LINES OF CREDIT 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School entered into two line of credit 
arrangements with FCN Bank. The first line of credit has a $300,000 borrowing capacity and 
incurred interest at 6.5% per annum, maturing October 2019. This was extended to 
October 2022 with an interest rate of 5%. The second line of credit has a $120,000 
borrowing capacity and incurred interest at 6.5% per annum, maturing August 2019. This 
was extended to October 2022 with an interest rate of 4.5%. The balance of the lines of 
credit as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $386,653 and $157,305, respectively. 

NOTE 5 RETIREMENT PLANS 

The School provides retirement benefits covering substantially all full-time employees. 
Retirement benefits are provided by the Indiana State Teachers' Retirement Fund (TRF) 
and the Indiana Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF), both of which are cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plans governed by the state of Indiana and 
administered by the Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS) Board. 

Contribution requirements of plan members are determined annually by the INPRS Board. 
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the School contributed 5.5% of compensation 
for eligible teaching personnel to TRF and 11.2% for other employees to PERF. Should the 
School elect to withdraw from TRF or PERF, it could be subject to a withdrawal fee. The 
School's contributions represent an insignificant percentage of the total contributions 
received by TRF and PERF. As of June 30, 2020 (the latest year reported), TRF and PERF 
were approximately 90% and 102% funded, respectively. The School's total retirement 
expense was $43,396 and $76,192 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

(11)153



NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MA VS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 6 COMMITMENTS 

The School operates under a charter granted by Ball State University. As the sponsoring 
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under this 
charter, the School has agreed to pay to Ball State University an annual administrative fee 
equal to 3% of state tuition support. Payments under this charter agreement were $39,850 
and $37,111 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The charter remains 
in effect until June 30, 2023, and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. 

The School contracted with Indiana Charters LLC, a for-profit organization incorporated in 
the state of Indiana, to perform data management, financial, administrative, and general 
operational support services. Expenses under this contract were $81,825 and $75,836 for 
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

NOTE 7 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The School provides educational instruction services to families residing in  Rush and 
surrounding counties in Indiana and is subject to the risks of economic and competitive 
forces at work within this geographic area. 

The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the state of Indiana and grants 
awarded under federal programs. Any changes in state or federal legislation could 
significantly impact the School. Additionally, the School is subject to monitoring and audit by 
state and federal agencies. Those examinations may result in additional liability to be 
imposed on the School. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of receivables from the state of Indiana. At June 30, 2021, substantially all 
of the receivable balance was due from the state of Indiana. In addition, bank deposits are 
maintained primarily at FCN Bank, and are insured up to the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) limit. 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. The COVlD-19 pandemic is 
having significant effects on global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. 
Specific to the School, COVID-19 has impacted various parts of its 2020 and 2021 
operations and financial results, including an increase in nutrition funding. Management 
believes the School is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, 
the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as these 
events are ongoing and are still developing. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE 8 LIQUIDITY 

Under ASU 2016-14, the School is required to disclose the assets it has available at 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 to meet its cash needs for general expenditures within one year of 
the date of the statement of financial position. Financial assets for the School include cash 
and grants receivable which total $176,459 and $169,836 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

From time to time, the School receives donor-restricted contributions. Because donor 
restrictions require resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the 
School must maintain sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, 
financial assets may not be available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the 
School's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available 
as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. In addition, the 
School has a $33,347 and $149,947 line of credit available as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

NOTE 9 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE REPORTING 

The costs of providing the educational activities have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statements of activities and change in net assets. Management of the School 
has categorized expenses as program services or management and general according to 
the underlying nature of the expense. As such, no allocation of specific transactions 
between these categories is required. 

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The School contracts with a transportation company that is owned by the husband of the 
Board Treasurer. The School uses the transportation company for busing services and also 
employs two relatives of the Board Treasurer. Expenses under this relationship during the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $192,592 and $158,432, respectively, for 
transportation and $10,769 and $70,599, respectively, for labor. 
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NORTHERN RUSH C OUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

OTHER REPORT 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

The reports presented herein were prepared in addition to another official report prepared for the 
School as listed below: 

Supplemental Audit Report of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the Indiana State 
Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools Performed by Private 
Examiners pertaining to matters addressed in its Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines 
Manual for Indiana Charter Schools. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

Mays 
Mays Community 

Community Academy 
Academ� Pre-K Eliminations 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash $ 46,413 $ $ 

Grants Receivable 130,046 
Due from Pre-K 16,992 {16,992) 

Total Current Assets 193,451 (16,992) 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

land 88,400 
Buildings and Improvements 621,588 
Furniture and Equipment 279,804 
Software and Textbooks 90,082 
Vehicles 5,000 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation \349,013l 

Property and Equipment, Net 735,861 

OTHER ASSETS 

Security Deposit 3,900 

Total Assets $ 933,212 $ $ (16,992) 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Lines of Credit $ 386,653 $ $ 

Current Portion of Notes Payable 78,082 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 120,716 
Due to Charter School 16,992 {16,992} 

Total Current liabilities 585,451 16,992 (16,992) 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 266,464 

Total Liabilities 851,915 16,992 (16,992} 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Undesignated 81,297 (16,992) 

Total liabilities and Net Assets $ 933,212 $ $ (16,992) 

(15) 

Total 

$ 46,413 
130,046 

176,459 

88,400 
621,588 
279,804 

90,082 
5,000 

{349,013} 
735,861 

3,900 

$ 916,220 

$ 386,653 
78,082 

120,716 

585,451 

266,464 

851,915 

64,305 

$ 916,220 
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NORTHERN RUS H COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
{SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

Mays 
Mays Community 

Community Academy 
Academ;t Pre-K 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

State Education Support $ 1,522,803 $ 
Grant Revenue 838,228 4,208 
Student Fees 13,689 49,520 
Contributions 7,336 
Fundraising and Other Income 56,853 4,271 
Gain on Extinguishment of 

Payroll Protection Program Loan 243 954 
Total Revenue and Support 2,682,863 57,999 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 1,942,571 58,998 
Management and General 686,403 

Total Expenses 2,628,974 58,998 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 53,889 (999) 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 27,408 (15,993) 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 81,297 � (16,992} 

(16) 

Total 

$ 1,522,803 
842,436 

63,209 
7,336 

61,124 

243 954 
2,740,862 

2,001,569 
686,403 

2,687,972 

52,890 

11 415 

$ 64,305 
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STATE OF INDIANA 
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNJTY EMPLOYER 

Charter School Boa� 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
d/b/a Mays Community Academy 
929 East South Street 
Mays, IN 46155 

B58903 

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS 
302 Wl'Sl W 1\SHINGTUN STREET 

ROOM l'Al8 
INDIANAPOLIS. INDIANA 4620'-l-2769 

Telephone: (3 l 7) 232-2513 
Fax: (317) 232-471 I 

Web Site: www .in.gov/sbva 

March 24, 2022 

We have reviewed the Supplemental Audit Report for Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a 
Mays Community Academy prepared by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, Independent Public Accountants, for the 
period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. ln our opinion, the Supplemental Audit Report was prepared in 
accordance with the guidelines established by the State Board of Accounts . 

No findings were noted for the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 

The Supplemental Audit Report and associated audited Financial Statements are filed in our office 
as a matter of public record. 

�'iJµ, 
Tammy R. White, CPA 
Deputy State Examiner 
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SUPPLEMENTAL AUDIT REPORT

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS
,

INC. 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY
, 

INDIANA 

JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
OBA: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community 
Academy, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and have issued our report thereon 
dated January 7, 2022. As part of our audit, we tested the School's compliance with provisions of the 
Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charier Schools issued by the 
Indiana State Board of Accounts and related provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements. The School did not have any findings related to the Indiana State Board of Accounts 
compliance guidelines. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
January 7, 2022 

Cl.A ,s an independent member of Nexia International, � leading, !:lob al networ� uf independPnt 

dCCOunt
i

ng and consulting firms. See nexia .com/member firm disclam1er for details. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 
AUDIT RESULTS AND COMMENTS 

JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 

No findings noted for the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 

EXIT CONFERENCE 
JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 

The contents of this report were discussed with Nansi Custer, Board President, Marcia 
Schwering, Board Treasurer, and Kevin Davis, Indiana Charters, on December 10, 2021. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 
OFFICIAL RESPONSE 

JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021 

No findings noted for the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 
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STATE OF INDIANA 
AN [QlJA L OPPORTUNITY EMPl,OY ER 

Charter School Board 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
d/b/a Mays Community Academy 
929 East South Street 
Mays, IN 46155 

856497 

ST ATC BOARD or- ACCOUNTS 
302 Wl·:ST W !\SI !ll'iGTOl\ STREET 

ROOM i-:418 
INDl/\1',APOLIS. INDIA:'lA 46204-2769 

Telephone: (317) 232-2513 

l7ax: (317) 232-4711 
Web Sit�: www.in.gov/sboa 

March 18, 2021 

We have reviewed the audit report of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community 
Academy which was opined upon by CliftonlarsonAllen LLP, Independent Public Accountants, for the 
period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020. Per the Independent Auditors' Report the financial statements 
included in the report present fairly the financial condition of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. d/b/a 
Mays Community Academy as of June 30, 2020 and the results of its operations for the period then ended, 
on the basis of accounting described in the report. 

In our opinion, CliftonlarsonAllen LLP prepared the audit report in accordance with guidelines 
established by the State Board of Accounts. 

In addition to the report presented herein, a Supplemental Audit Report for Northern Rush County 
Schools, Inc. d/b/a Mays Community Academy, was prepared in accordance with the guidelines established 
by the State Board of Accounts. 

The report is filed with this letter in our office as a matter of public record. 

P�G.� 
Paul D. Joyce, CPA 
State Examiner 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, 
Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy, which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, functional expenses, 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy as 
of June 30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matter 

The 2019 financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community 
Academy were audited by other auditors whose report dated January 30, 2020 expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those statements. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

The supplementary information is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in alt material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
February 17, 2021 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

2020 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash $ 58,511 
Grants Receivable 111,325 

Total Current Assets 169,836 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Land 88,400 
Buildings and Improvements 605,875 
Furniture and Equipment 279,804 
Software and Textbooks 90,082 
Vehicles 5,000 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (290

1
685l 

Property and Equipment, Net 778,476 

OTHER ASSETS 

Security Deposit 3,900 

Total Assets $ 952,212 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Lines of Credit $ 157,305 
Current Portion of Notes Payable 78,082 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 120 960 

Total Current Liabilities 356,347 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 340,496 
Loan Payable Under Paycheck Protection Program 243 954 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 584 450 

Tota! Liabilities 940,797 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Undesignated 11 415 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 952,212 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(3) 

2019 

$ 146,442 
94,285 

240,727 

88,400 
552,475 
223,468 

90,082 
5,000 

{216,415} 
743 010 

3 900 

$ 987,637 

$ 238,847 
69,739 

130
1
230 

438,816 

412,901 

412,901 

851,717 

135,920 

$ 987 637 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

2020 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

State Education Support $ 1,721,205 
Grant Revenue 763,364 
Student Fees 13,194 
Contributions 3,353 
Fundraising and Other Income 88

1
998 

Total Revenue and Support 2,590,114 

EXPENSES 

Program Services 1,936,664 
Management and General 777 955 

Total Expenses 2,714,619 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (124,505) 

Net Assets (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 135,920 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 11,415 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

(4) 

2019 

$ 1,717,328 
456,069 

21,347 
51,589 
44,519 

2,290,852 

1,638,724 
494,388 

2,133,112 

157,740 

(21,820) 

$ 135,920 
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Salaries and Wages 
Employee Benefits 
Staff Development 
Professional Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Authorizer Oversight Fees 
Food Costs 
Transportation 
Information Technology 
Advertising 
Classroom, Kitchen, and Office Supplies 
Occupancy 
Depreciation 
Interest 
Insurance 
Other 

Total Functional Expenses 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

2020 
Program Management Program 
Services and General Total Services 

$ 979,822 $ 367,325 $ 1,347,147 $ 735,163 
292,459 134,254 426,713 324,968 

37,125 37,125 34,700 
67,334 157,447 224,781 39,148 

39,241 39,241 
37,111 37,111 

81,951 81,951 77,218 
232,145 215 232,360 235,567 

23,211 23,211 12,578 
44 44 

83,249 9,484 92,733 50,194 
54,219 54,219 65,558 
74,269 74,269 56,024 

28,254 28,254 
2,500 2,500 2,500 
8,380 4,580 12,960 5,106 

$ 1,936,664 $ 777
1
955 $ 2,714,619 $ 1

1
638,724 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(5} 

2019 
Management 
and General Total 

$ 261,846 $ 997,009 
64,102 389,070 

34,700 
72,815 111,963 
19,562 19,562 
34,039 34,039 

77,218 
325 235,892 

12,578 
1,372 1,372 
7,439 57,633 

65,558 
56,024 

18,516 18,516 
2,500 

14,372 19,478 

$ 494
1
388 $ 2,133,112 
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N ORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FL OWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

2020 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets $ (124,505) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 74,269 
Changes in Operatin g Assets and Liabilities: 

Grants Receivable (17,040) 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses {9,270) 
Refundable Advances 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (76,546) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property and Equipment (109,735) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from Short-Term Financing 
Principal Payments on Short-Term Financing 
Proceeds from Lines of Credit, Net 37,105 
Proceeds from Notes Payable 702,974 
Repayment of Notes Payable (885,683) 
Proceeds from Loan Payable Under Paycheck Protection Program 243

1
954 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 98,350 

NET CHANGE IN CASH (87,931) 

Cash - Beginning of Year 146,442 

CASH - END OF YEAR $ 58,511 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid for Interest $ 28,254 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

(6) 

2019 

$ 157,740 

56,024 

(94,285) 
(71,336) 
(29,475} 
18,668 

(61,021) 

100,000 
(201,000) 
238,847 

50,000 
(67,068) 

120 779 

78,426 

68,016 

$ 146.442 

$ 18,516 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 

Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated dba: Mays Community Academy (the School) 
is a public benefit nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of the state of Indiana. 
The School is sponsored by Ball State University and operates a public charter school 
established under Indiana Code 20-24. The School served approximately 220 and 180 
students during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, in grades 
kindergarten through eight. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 
606). Subsequent to May 2014, the FASB issued six ASUs to clarify certain matters related 
to Topic 606. Topic 606 supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in FASB ASC 
605, Revenue Recognition, and requires the recognition of revenue when promised goods 
or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The updates 
address the complexity of revenue recognition and provide sufficient information to enable 
the financial statement users to understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of 
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. No cumulative-effect 
adjustments in net assets was recorded because the adoption of ASU 2014-09 did not 
significantly impact the Company's reported historical revenue. 

In June 2018, FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received 
and Made. This ASU was issued to clarify accounting guidance for contributions received 
and made. The amendments to this ASU assist entities in (1) evaluating whether 
transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the 
scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject 
other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. The financial 
statements reflect the application of ASU 2018-08 beginning January 1, 2019. The new 
guidance does not require prior period results to be restated. The implementation of this 
standard did not significantly impact the Organization's financial statements 

Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools Act. 
Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the funding received 
by other public schools in the same geographic area. Funding from the state of Indiana is 
based on enrollment, and paid in monthly installments in July through June coinciding with 
the academic school year. Revenue is recognized in the year in which the educational 
services are rendered. 

A portion of the School's revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants. Therefore, 
the School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amounts of costs and expenses at 
the time they are incurred. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are 
reported as deferred revenues in the statement of financial position. As of June 30, 2020, 
the School does not have any conditional grants that have not been recognized as revenue 
in the statement of activities because conditions have not been met. 

Revenue from student fees, fundraising, and other income is recognized when the control of 
the promised good or service is transferred to the student, in an amount that reflects the 
consideration expected to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Amounts 
received prior to the service is performed is reported as deferred revenue in the statement of 
financial position. As of June 30, 2020, the School did not have any such deferred revenue. 

Contributions and Grants 

The School receives income from contributions and grants that support certain school 
activities. Such revenue received and unconditional promises to give are measured at their 
fair value and are reported as an increase in net assets. The School reports gifts of cash 
and other assets and grants as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations 
that limit the use of the donated assets, or if they are designated as support for future 
periods. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or 
purposes restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to 
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and change 
in net assets as net assets released from restriction. The School did not have any net assets 
with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2020 and 2019. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash consists of cash held in bank accounts and cash equivalents consists of short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. There were no cash 
equivalents at June 30, 2020 and 2019. 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable relate primarily to activities funded under federal programs. The School 
believes that it is operating in compliance with regulatory requirements and as such no 
allowance for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Taxes on Income 

Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated has received a determination from the U.S. 
Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code as a tax-exempt organization; however, the School would be 
subject to tax on income unrelated to its tax-exempt purpose. For the years ended June 30, 
2020 and 2019, no accounting for federal and state income taxes was required to be 
included in the accompanying financial statements. 

Professional accounting standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it is 
more likely than not the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax 
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax 
liability that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not 
meeting the more-likely-than-not test, no tax liability is recorded. The School has examined 
this issue and has determined that there are no material contingent tax liabilities or 
questionable tax positions. Tax years ending after 2015 are open to audit for both federal 
and state purposes. 

Property and Equipment 

Purchases of assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful lives 
are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and repairs, 
minor replacement costs, and equipment purchases with a unit cost of less than $500 are 
charged to expense as incurred. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the 
straight- line method. The estimated useful lives generally are as follows: 

Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture and Equipment 
Software and Textbooks 
Vehicles 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

7 to 40 Years 
5 to 10 Years 

3 to 5 Years 
10 Years 

On an ongoing basis, the School reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be overstated. The School 
recognizes impairment losses if the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated are 
less than the carrying value of the related asset. If impaired, the assets are adjusted to fair 
value based on the undiscounted cash flows. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsequent Events 

The School evaluated subsequent events through February 17, 2021, the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued. Events occurring through that date have 
been evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related 
disclosures would be required. 

In July 2020, the School renewed the two tines of credit and the short-term financing 
agreement with FCN Bank. 

In July 2020, the School received roughly $27,000 in CARES Act funding. 

NOTE 2 NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes payable were comprised of the following at June 30: 

Description 2020 2019 

Two notes payable to CentreBank with substantially 
identical terms; payable in monthly installments of 
$2,822 total including interest at 5.50% per annum, 
secured by all School assets. The remaining unpaid 
portion was due upon maturity in June 2019. These were 
refinanced in July 2019. $ $ 118,133 

Note payable to FCN Bank with monthly installments 
of $3,298 including interest at 6.25% annum, 
maturing in July 2024. 142,328 

Note payable to Indiana State Board of Education, 
payable $21,250 semi-annually ( January 1 and July 1) 
plus interest at 1.00% per annum, maturing in July 2026. 276,250 318,750 

Note payable to FCN Bank payable in one payment 
(June 2019) plus interest at 7.00% per annum. This was 
refinanced in July 2019. 45 757 

Total 418,578 482,640 

Less: Current Portion (78,082} (69,739) 

Long-Term Portion 1 340,496 $ 412 901 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTE S TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 2 NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

Principal maturities of notes payable are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

Year Ending June 30, 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Thereafter 
Total 

NOTE 3 PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN 

Amount 
$ 78,082 

78,082 
78,082 
78,082 
42,500 
63 750 

$ 418,578 

On April 15, 2020, the Organization received a loan from FCN Bank in the amount of 
$243,954 to fund payroll, rent, utilities, and interest on mortgages and existing debt through 
the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The original loan agreement was written 
prior to the PPP Flexibility Act of 2020 (June 5) and was due over 18 months, deferred for 
six months. Subsequent to this, the law changed the loan deferral terms retroactively. The 
PPP Flexibility Act and subsequent regulations supersede the loan agreement. The PPP 
Loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 1.0% per annum, with the first six months of interest 
deferred, has a term of two years, and is unsecured and guaranteed by the U.S. Small 
Business Administration. Payment of principal and interest is deferred until the date on 
which the amount of forgiveness is remitted to the lender or, if the Organization fails to apply 
for forgiveness within 10 months after the covered period, then payment of principal and 
interest shall begin on that date. These amounts may be forgiven subject to compliance and 
approval based on the timing and use of these funds in accordance with the program. To the 
extent that all or part of the PPP Loan is not forgiven, the Organization will be required to 
pay interest on the PPP Loan at a rate of 1.0% per annum, and commencing in November 
2020, principal and interest payments will be required through the maturity date in April 
2022. 

NOTE 4 LINES OF CREDIT 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School entered into two line of credit 
arrangements with FCN Bank. The first line of credit has a $300,000 borrowing capacity and 
incurred lnterest at 6.5% per annum, maturing October 2019. This was extended to July 
2020 with an interest rate of 6.75%. The second line of credit has a $120,000 borrowing 
capacity and incurred interest at 6.5% per annum, maturing August 2019. This was 
extended to July 2020 with an interest rate of 7%. The balance of the lines of credit as of 
June 30, 2020 was $157,304. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 5 SHORT-TERM FINANCING 

From time to time throughout the year ended June 30, 2019, the School utilized short-term 
note payable financing from members of the community to meet cash flow needs. The 
average interest rate on the short-tenn notes payable was 8%. The School borrowed and 
repaid $100,000 and $201,000, respectively, during the year ended June 30, 2019 and paid 
$3,809 in interest thereon. 

NOTE 6 RETIREMENT PLANS 

The School provides retirement benefits covering substantially all full-time employees. 
Retirement benefits are provided by the Indiana State Teachers' Retirement Fund (TRF) 
and the Indiana Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF), both of which are cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plans governed by the state of Indiana and 
administered by the Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS) Board. 

Contribution requirements of plan members are determined annually by the INPRS Board. 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the School contributed 8.5% of compensation for eligible 
teaching personnel to TRF and 6.8% for other employees to PERF. For the year ended 
June 30, 2019, the School contributed 10.5% of compensation for eligible teaching 
personnel to TRF and 4% for other employees to PERF. Should the School elect to 
withdraw from TRF or PERF, it could be subject to a withdrawal fee. The School's 
contributions represent an insignificant percentage of the total contributions received by TRF 
and PERF. As of June 30, 2018 (the latest year reported), TRF and PERF were more than 
88% funded. The School's total retirement expense was $76,192 and $67,425 for the years 
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

NOTE 7 COMMITMENTS 

The School operates under a charter granted by Ball State University. As the sponsoring 
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under this 
charter, the School has agreed to pay to Ball State University an annual administrative fee 
equal to 3% of state tuition support. Payments under this charter agreement were $37,111 
and $34,039 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The charter remains 
in effect until June 30, 2021, and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. 

The School contracted with Indiana Charters LLC, a for-profit organization incorporated in 
the state of Indiana, to perform data management, financial, administrative, and general 
operational support services. Expenses under this contract were $75,836 and $38,834 for 
the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 8 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The School provides educational instruction services to families residing in Rush and 
surrounding counties in Indiana and is subject to the risks of economic and competitive 
forces at work within this geographic area. 

The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the state of Indiana and grants 
awarded under federal programs. Any changes in state or federal legislation could 
significantly impact the School. Additionally, the School is subject to monitoring and audit by 
state and federal agencies. Those examinations may result in additional liability to be 
imposed on the School. 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of receivables from the state of Indiana. At June 30, 2020, substantially all 
of the receivable balance was due from the state of Indiana. In addition, bank deposits are 
maintained primarily at FCN Bank, and are insured up to the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) limit. 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is 
having significant effects on global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. 
Specific to the School, COVID-19 has impacted various parts of its 2020 and 2021 
operations and financial results, including an increase in nutrition funding. Management 
believes the School is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, 
the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as these 
events are ongoing and are still developing. 

NOTE 9 LIQUIDITY 

Under ASU 2016-14, the School is required to disclose the assets it has available at 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 to meet its cash needs for general expenditures within one year of 
the date of the statement of financial position. Financial assets for the School include cash 
and grants receivable which total $169,836 and $240,727 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

From time to time, the School receives donor-restricted contributions. Because donor 
restrictions require resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the 
School must maintain sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, 
financial assets may not be available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the 
School's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available 
as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. In addition, the 
School has a $149,947 line of credit available as of June 30, 2020. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 

NOTE 10 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE REPORTING 

The costs of providing the educational activities have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statements of .activities and change in net assets. Management of the School 
has categorized expenses as program services or management and general according to 
the underlying nature of the expense. As such, no allocation of specific transactions 
between these categories is required. 

NOTE 11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The School contracts with a transportation company that is owned by the husband of the 
Board Treasurer. The School uses the transportation company for busing services and also 
employs two relatives of the Board Treasurer. Expenses under this relationship during the 
year ended June 30, 2020 were $158,432 for transportation and $70,599 and labor. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

OTHER REPORT 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

The reports presented herein were prepared in addition to another official report prepared for the 
School as listed below: 

Supplemental Audit Report of Northern Rush County Schools, Incorporated 
dba: Mays Community Academy 

The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the Indiana State 
Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools Performed by Private 
Examiners pertaining to matters addressed in its Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines 
Manual for Indiana Charter Schools. 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2020 

(SEE IND EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT} 

Mays 
Mays Community 

Community Academy 
Academ:t Pre-K Eliminations 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash $ 58,511 $ $ 

Grants Receivable 111,325 
Due from Charter School 5,121 {s,121l 

Total Current Assets 169,836 5,121 (5,121) 

PROPERTY AND EQUI PMENT 

Land 88,400 
Buildings and Improvements 605,875 
Furniture and Equipment 279,804 
Software and Textbooks 90,082 
Vehicles 5,000 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (290

1
685} 

Property and Equipment, Net 778,476 

OTHER ASSETS 

Security Deposit 3,900 

Total Assets $ 952,212 $ 5,121 $ (5,121} 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Lines of Credit $ 157,305 $ $ 

Current Portion of Notes Payable 78,082 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 99,846 21,114 
Due to Pre-K 5,121 (5, 121l 

Total Current Liabilities 340,354 21,114 (5,121) 

LONG.TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 340,496 
Loan Payable Under Paycheck Protection Program 243,954 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 584,450 

Total Liabilities 924,804 21,114 (5,121) 

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
Undesignated 27,408 c1 s.ss3l 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets i 952,212 i 5,121 $ 

(16) 

Total 

$ 58,511 
111,325 

169,836 

88,400 
605,875 
279,804 

90,082 
5,000 

(290,685} 
778,476 

3,900 

$ 952,212 

$ 157,305 
78,0B2 

120,960 

356,347 

340,496 
243,954 
584.450 

940,797 

11,415 

$ 952,212 
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INCORPORATED 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

Mays 
Mays Community 

Community Academy 
Academl Pre-K 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State Education Support $ 1,721,205 $ 

Grant Revenue 763,364 
Student Fees 13,194 
Contributions 3,353 
Fundraising and Other Income 19,580 69 418 

Total Revenue and Support 2,520,696 69,418 

EXPENSES 
Program Servic es 1,872,268 64,396 
Management and General 729

1
739 48 216 

Total Expenses 2,602,007 112,612 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (81,311) (43,194) 

Net Assets - Be ginning of Year 108 719 27,201 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 27
1
408 � {15

1
993} 

(17) 

Total 

$ 1,721,205 
763,364 

13,194 
3,353 

88,998 
2,590,114 

1,936,664 
777 955 

2,714,619 

(124,505) 

135 920 

i 11,415 
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STATE OF INDIANA 
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

Charter School Board 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
d/b/a Mays Community Academy 
929 East South Street 
Mays, IN 46155 

856498 

STATI•: HOARD OF /\CCOLTNTS 
302 WEST \.VASI IINGTON STRITT 

ROOM E4l8 
IN DI/\NAPOI .IS, IND!/\N/\ 46204-2769 

Tckphonc: (317) 232-25 f 3 
Fax: (317) 232-4711 

Wch Site: www.in.gov/sboa 

March 18, 2021 

We have reviewed the Supplemental Audit Report for Northern Rush County Schools, Inc d/b/a 
Mays Community Academy prepared by CliftonlarsonAHen LLP, Independent Public Accountants, for the 
period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020. In our opinion, tile Supplemental Audit Report was prepared in 
accordance with the guidelines established by the State Board of Accounts. 

We call your attention to the findings in the report. Pages 3 through 4 contain three audit results 
and comments. Management's response is on page 6. 

The Supplemental Audit Report and associated audited Financial Statements are filed in our office 
as a matter of public record. 

�[)-� 
Paul D. Joyce, CPA 
State Examiner 
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SUPPLEMENTAL AUDIT REPORT 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 
DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 

JULY 1, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. 
dba: Mays Community Academy 
Mays, Indiana 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

C LAconnect com 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the financial statements of Northern Rush County Schools, Inc. dba: Mays Community 
Academy, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated February 
17, 2021. As part of our audit, we tested the School's compliance with provisions of the Accounting and 
Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools issued by the Indiana State Board 
of Accounts and related provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements. Reported in the 
Audit Results and Comments are matters where we believe the School was not in compliance with those 
provisions. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
February 17, 2021 

(2) 
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REQUIRED REPORTS 

NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 
AUDIT RESULTS AND COMMENTS 

JULY1, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2020 

During testing, it was noted that the Annual Financial Report (AFR) was not filed with the state 
per review of the Indiana Gateway website. 

Additionally during testing, it was noted that the 1 00R report was filed past the deadline of 
January 31, 2020 and was filed with the state on February 11, 2020. 

Lastly during testing, it was noted that the Form 9 for the reporting period July 1, 2019 through 
December 31, 2019 beginning cash balance of $140,052 did not agree to the prior year ended 
cash balance per the trial balance of $146,442. 

Charter schools are required to file an annual report with the State Examiner not later than sixty 
(60) days after the close of each fiscal year, IC 5-11-1-4. "Every state, county, city, town,
township, or school official ... shall during the month of January of each year prepare, make,
and sign a certified report, correctly and completely showing the names and business
addresses of each and all officers, employees, and agents ... and the respective duties and
compensation of each, and shall forthwith file said report in the office of the state examiner of
the state board of accounts ... The certification must be filed electronically in the manner
prescribed under IC 5-14-3.8-7." Charter schools are required to submit a Form 9 Biannual
Financial Report two times per year during the months of January and July. The financial
informati.on in the Form 9 shall reflect cash basis information and shall be reported utilizing the
State Board of Accounts prescribed chart of accounts. The January report must include
previous calendar year financial and other required information for the period of July 1 to
December 31 financial data. The July report must include current calendar year financial and
other required information for the period of January 1 to June 30. (Accounting and Uniform
Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools Manual, Part 9)

GENERAL RECEIPTS TESTING 

During our general receipt testing, we noted there were two (2) receipts in our sample of forty 
(40) that information was unable to be provided for further testing.

Receipts shall be issued and recorded at the time of the transaction; for example, when cash or 
a check is received, a receipt is to be immediately prepared and given to the person making 
payment. All charter school money must be deposited in the designated depository not later 
than the business day following the receipt of funds on business days of the depository in the 
same form in which the funds were received. Timely receipts and deposits are required to 
provide the organizer and charter school administration with current information necessary for 
all financial decisions. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana 
Charter Schools Manual, Part 8) 

(3)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 
OBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 

RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 
AUDIT RESULTS AND COMMENTS 

JULY 1, 2019 TO JU NE 30, 2020 

GENERAL DISBURSEMENT TESTING 

During our general disbursement testing, we noted the following items in our sample of forty 
(40) selections:

• Two (2) disbursements did not have supporting information for further testing.
• Three (3) disbursements had vouchers but did not have the supporting invoices.
• Four (4) disbursements had vouchers that did not contain approval (unsigned).

The charter school must establish procedures for the initiation, approval, and use of purchase 
requisitions and purchase orders. The procedures must include limits on approval of purchase 
orders after the purchase to emergency situations and all blanket purchases must have a fixed 
monetary limit. Upon receipt of the goods or services a charter school employee must verify the 
condition, quantity, and quality of the goods or services prior to payment of the 
invoice/bill/contract. Supporting documentation, such as invoices, shall be compared to 
purchase orders to ensure the prices, quantities, etc. are correct prior to payment. (Accounting 
and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools Manual, Part 8) 

(4)
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NORTHERN RUSH COUNTY SCHOOLS, INC. 

DBA: MAYS COMMUNITY ACADEMY 
RUSH COUNTY, INDIANA 

EXIT CONFERENCE 

JULY 1, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2020 

The contents of t his report were discussed with Nansi Custer, Board President, Marcia 
Schwering, Board Treasurer, and Kevin Davis, Indiana Charters, on February 17, 2021. The 
Off icial Response has been made a part of this report and may be found on page 6. 

(5)
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February 29, 2021 

RESPONSE TO SBOA REPORT 

Northern Rush County Schools Inc. 
929 E. South Street 
Mays Indiana 46155 

REQUIRED REPORTS : Due to a tabulation error, the ending cash balance on the June 30, 2019 Form 

9 was misstated. The Form 9 ending cash balances for December 31, 2019 and June 30, 2020 were 
stated properly and the error has been resolved moving forward. 

The lOOR report was delayed due to the transition from our former CEO to our new accountant. There 

was a miscommunication in who would be responsible for the report. Moving forward, this 

responsibility has been clearly defined and will be carried out by our new accountant. 

GENERAL RECEIPTS TESTING: We have implemented additional internal controls to ensure the 

accurate and timely processing of receipts of payment. This includes receipts in triplicate and verified by 

at least 2 individuals on all tr,msactions. All monies received are verified by receipt and deposited in a 
timely manner. Original receipt books are maintained as records. The corporation treasurer keeps one 

of the triplicate receipts and a physical copy of any checks deposited along with deposit tickets from the 

bank. All these items will then be maintained for record keeping. 

GENERAL DISBURSEMENT TESTING: We have now contracted with a new accountant and an 

educational service provider who specializes in school finance, to ensure that our processes are 

complete and accurate. The NRCS Board and office staff have received additional training on 

disbursements, "purchase orders, vouchers and record keeping. This has been very helpful and has given 

us the knowledge and support to ensure accurate record keeping. We have also strengthened our 
internal controls on these processes. The combined team provides additional layers of support, 

verification and record keeping. Records are complete and filed both in paper and electronic form. 

Nansi Custer, 

President 

Northern Rush County Schools lnc. 

OBA: Mays Community Academy 
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Mays Community Academy 

Academic Performance

197



School Name Location Opening 
Year

Year Closed (if 
applicable)

Grade 
Levels

Current 
Enrollment FRL % Special 

Education % Minority % ELL % School Type ESP (if applicable)

1 Mays Community Academy Mays, IN 46155 2015 K-6 118 62% 46% 4% 0% rural, charter school n/a
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Portfolio Summary

Please complete a row for each school currently or formerly operated by the organizer or proposed education service provider. Insert additional rows as needed
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School Name:

School Year 1: 18-19 Grade Level ELA Proficiency ELA Growth (VA) Math Proficiency Math Growth (VA) Instrument/ 
Assessment Used

College/Career 
Credential % 4-Year Grad Rate 3rd Grade Reading 

Pass Rate Attendance Rate

Kdg-7th 42.80% 41.90% NWEA N/A
3rd-7th 36.80% 33.30% ILEARN 100%

School Year 2: 20-21 Grade Level ELA Proficiency ELA Growth (VA) Math Proficiency Math Growth (VA) Instrument/ 
Assessment Used

College/Career 
Credential % 4-Year Grad Rate 3rd Grade Reading 

Pass Rate Attendance Rate

Kdg-8th 50.70% 48.80% NWEA n/a
3rd-8th 31.80% 17.60% ILEARN 85.70%

School Year 3: 21-22 Grade Level ELA Proficiency ELA Growth (VA) Math Proficiency Math Growth (VA) Instrument/ 
Assessment Used

College/Career 
Credential % 4-Year Grad Rate 3rd Grade Reading 

Pass Rate Attendance Rate

Kdg-8th 47% 42.80% NWEA n/a
3rd-8th 32.50% 27.30% ILEARN 93%

Academic Performance: Comparable Schools

Provide the three (3) most recent years of academic data for each school currently operated by the organizer or education service provider that has a similar grade-span and serves a similar
demographic to the  proposed charter school,even if the proposed charter school is not a replication of an existing school. Copy additional Tabs and insert additional Rows as necessary.

Mays Community Academy
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